
EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
1 If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. 
2 Follow the green signs. 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts. 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
 
 
If you require further information, please contact: Priya Patel 
Telephone: 01344 352233 
Email: priya.patel@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Published: 1 June 2012 

  

 

 NOTICE OF MEETING 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Thursday 14 June 2012, 7.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, Bracknell 
To: The Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor Mrs Angell, Baily, Finch, Kensall, Mrs McCracken, Mrs Temperton, Thompson, Virgo 
and Ms Wilson 
cc: Substitute Members of the Panel 
Councillors Allen, Brossard, Ms Brown, Davison and Heydon 
Co-opted Representatives 
Terry Pearce, Bracknell Forest Local Involvement Network 
 
ALISON SANDERS 
Director of Corporate Services 
 



 

 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Thursday 14 June 2012, 7.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, 
Bracknell 
AGENDA 
 
 Page No 
1. Election of Chairman   
2. Appointment of Vice Chairman   
3. Apologies for Absence/Substitute Members   

 To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any 
substitute members.  
 

 

4. Minutes and Matters Arising   

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel held on 26 April 2012.  
 

1 - 10 

5. Declarations of Interest and Party Whip   

 Members are asked to declare any personal or prejudicial interest and 
the nature of that interest, including the existence and nature of the 
party whip, in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting.  
 

 

6. Urgent Items of Business   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent.  
 

 

7. Public Participation   

 To receive submissions from members of the public which have been 
submitted in advance in accordance with the Council’s Public 
Participation Scheme for Overview and Scrutiny.  
 

 

8. Treatment for Strokes   

 To receive a presentation from Frimley Park Hospital NHS Foundation 
Trust on medical strokes and their treatment.  
 

11 - 14 

9. Dementia   

 To receive a briefing on the types of Dementia, its causes and effects 
and the respective roles of Health Service providers and local 
authorities.  
 

15 - 54 

10. Quality Accounts   

 To note the letters sent to five NHS Trusts on their quality accounts for 
2011-12.  

55 - 66 



 

 

 
11. Working Group Updates   

 To receive a report on the progress of the Panel’s Working Groups.  
 

67 - 68 

12. Date of Next Meeting   

 Thursday 27 September 2012.  
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
26 APRIL 2012 
7.30  - 9.45 PM 
  

 
 
Present: 
Councillors Virgo (Chairman), Mrs Angell (Vice-Chairman), Baily, Finch, Kensall, 
Mrs Temperton, Thompson, Ms Wilson and Blatchford (Substitute) 
 
Co-opted Representative: Terry Pearce, Bracknell Forest LINK 
 
Also Present: 
Councillor Birch, Executive Member for Adult Services, Health & Housing 
 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Councillor Mrs Barnard 
   
In Attendance: 
Richard Beaumont, Head of Overview & Scrutiny 
Glyn Jones, Director of Adult Social Care, Health & Housing 
Mary Purnell, NHS Berkshire 
Dr Pat Riordan, Director of Public Health 
Philippa Slinger, CEO, Heatherwood & Wexham Foundation Trust  
Dr William Tong, CCG Chairman 
 

31. Minutes and Matters Arising  
RESOLVED: that the Minutes of the Panel held on 2 February 2012 be approved as 
a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
Matters Arising 
 
Minute 22: Views of Member of Parliament 
The Chairman agreed to investigate if Dr Phillip Lee MP’s model of healthcare for the 
local area had been published and if so, to circulate it amongst members of the 
Panel. 
 
Minute 26: Frimley Park Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
The Head of Overview and Scrutiny confirmed that a visit to Frimley Park Hospital 
had now been arranged for members of the Panel on 15 May. 

32. Declarations of Interest and Party Whip  
Terry Pearce declared a personal interest in Item 10: Heatherwood Hospital Birthing 
Unit as chairman of ‘Defend Our Community Services’, which was running a 
campaign concerning Heatherwood Hospital. 

33. Public Participation  

Agenda Item 4

1



 

There were no items submitted under the Public Participation Scheme. 
 
The Chairman encouraged members of the public to submit questions under the 
Scheme if they wished. The public could submit questions under the Scheme if they 
gave three clear working days notice and met the other requirements of the Scheme. 

34. Bracknell and Ascot Clinical Commissioning Group  
Dr William Tong, Chairman of the Bracknell Forest & Ascot Clinical Commissioning 
Group(CCG) gave a presentation to the Panel on the process for gaining 
authorisation of the CCG. In this, and in response to Members’ questions, Dr Tong 
made the following points: 
 
• The Bracknell and Ascot CCG comprised 15 practices, this incorporated 

140,000 patients. 12 practices covered the Bracknell Forest area and in 
addition three practices were included in the Ascot area. There were 7 CCGs 
in Berkshire. 

• All CCG’s needed to be authorised by April 2013, this presented quite a 
challenge, a number of steps towards authorisation were required and there 
were six domains that had been specified by the Department of Health that 
would need to be addressed in order for CCG’s to be authorised. 

• The CCG had made good progress in its creation. Links had been built with 
Patient Reference Groups, the LINKs and the third sector. A ‘federated’ 
approach was being followed on various issues with other CCGs in Berkshire  

• Dr Tong stated that authorisation would be a process and would not end in 
April 2013. The CCG needed to show it was fit for purpose by April 2013, and 
they were confident of doing so. 

• The status of the CCG at present was that it was in shadow form and a sub 
committee of the PCT Cluster. 

• Domains one and six demonstrated a requirement for clinical engagement, 
which included appointing a consultant from the local area. The CCG would 
be challenging this as it was felt that there could be advantages of appointing 
an external consultant as they would then be unbiased. A nurse and two lay 
people would also need to be appointed. 

• The Health & Wellbeing Board and Healthwatch would need to demonstrate 
strong engagement with the public, to address domain two. 

• Dr Tong stated that QIPP (Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention) 
was at present the CCG’s biggest challenge. The CCG were currently 
overspent. 

• Domain five required the CCG to show how they were working collaboratively 
to deliver change, a good example of this was the Bridgewell Project. 

• The Health O&S Panel would have a role in 360 degree stakeholder review 
and the CCG would be asking the Panel to contribute to this process. The 
turnaround time for this would be around eight weeks. 

• Within Berkshire, all CCG’s had agreed to attempt to gain authorisation in the 
first wave, however it was uncertain if this was possible and so the Bracknell 
Forest and Ascot CCG would be preparing for wave one, but likely to gain 
authorisation in wave two. There were advantages of being authorised in 
wave two as lessons could be learned from those authorities that had been 
authorised in wave one. 

• Dr Tong confirmed that the CCG was absolutely committed to the screening of 
breast cancer and had increased the age range of women who qualified for 
screening.     

• Dr Tong confirmed that the CCG would always seek the best provider and this 
would include providers in the private sector. 

2



 

• Dr Tong apologised that the LINK representative felt that engagement had 
been poor to date and that this would improve under the auspices of the 
Health & Wellbeing Board. 

• Dr Tong assured members that there was not a conflict of interest around the 
CCG being a provider and a commissioner as the CCG would only be 
commissioning services that it did not provide, it would not be commissioning 
its own primary care services. 

 
The Chairman thanked Dr Tong for his informative presentation. Dr Tong agreed to 
attend a future meeting of the Panel to report the CCGs progress.   

35. Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  
The Director of Adult Social Care, Health and Housing reported that there was a 
statutory responsibility to produce a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), as a  
partnership endeavour. Work this year had identified a range of priorities; this 
included particular aspects of children’s services. The Council had also been required 
to produce a Child Poverty Strategy. 
 
A wide range of staff had been involved in identifying sources of information. The 
information now needed to be made more widely available. 
 
The Director of Public Health, Dr Pat Riordan reported that it was important to 
recognise the importance of the JSNA and how it linked with the Health & Wellbeing 
Board and Health & Wellbeing Strategy. It would identify joint intelligence and define 
the health and wellbeing of the local population taking into consideration factors such 
as where you live, where you were born, your parents, education and life 
opportunities. 
 
It was reported that the JSNA would be web based and interactive and provide 
information at Berkshire level, down to neighbourhood level. The JSNA would be 
used to define priorities in the Health & Wellbeing Strategy. The challenge would be 
to translate the issues in the JSNA into priorities. This would involve considering what 
needed to be achieved in Bracknell Forest over the next 3-5 years to bring about real 
changes in health and wellbeing of the local population. 
 
In response to member’s queries, the following points were made:  
 

• Sources of information that would feed into the JSNA would include; GP 
registers of patients, QUAFF data, information relating to housing, 
education, the environment and the economy. Child poverty information 
would also be required. The JSNA was intended to provide a holistic view of 
an issue. It was acknowledged that the data sources would inevitably 
contain a degree of error. 

• With regard to the data that had been produced to show an issue with 
asthma in the Binfield area, it was reported that each separate source of 
data should be subject to scrutiny. 

• The Director of Public Health reported that the Health & Wellbeing Board 
would be responsible for commissioning in terms of public health and so 
any issues or concerns should be fed into it. 

• The Executive Member for Adult Services, Health & Housing reported that if 
members wanted to raise issues concerning health and wellbeing there 
would be a number of ways of feeding these into the system and being dealt 
with. 

3



 

• Dr Tong stated that the H&WB Board would have to take tough decisions 
going forward, and it was important that these were well informed,. He was 
keen to hear the views of all groups in terms of concerns or innovation; this 
would be a key part of the Health & Wellbeing Board’s work as well as the 
CCG. A Health and Care Network would also provide a means of engaging 
the community and feeding into the work of the Health & Wellbeing Board. 

• It was noted that there were currently gaps, possibly around Children’s 
Services, but that these would be addressed and would have to be 
addressed as part of the CCGs authorisation process.    

 
The Director of Adult Social Care, Health & Housing reported that the Panel’s  
working group had already had a detailed briefing on the JSNA. The Long-Term 
conditions strategy was being re-visited, with Health partners. Once a draft of the 
Health & Wellbeing Strategy was complete, it would be submitted to the working 
group for comment and consideration. It would also be submitted to the Adult Social 
Care & Housing O&S Panel. 
 
The Chairman thanked officers and the Executive Member for their contributions and 
stated that he was delighted that the Panel would be able to play a part in the 
process and have a say in policy and direction. 

36. Health and Wellbeing Board  
The Executive Member for Adult Social Care & Health reported that the Health & 
Wellbeing Board would become statutory in April 2013; it was currently operating in 
shadow form. The H&WB agenda is huge, and there was a great deal of work that 
would need to be completed before April 2013, in particular the Panel may be asked 
for its input on various aspects of work, but that a short response time would need to 
be given. 
 
He reported that the Health and Social Care Act had received Royal Assent on 27 
March, which required local authorities to set up Health & Wellbeing Boards. The 
Health & Wellbeing Board would be responsible for developing a joint Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy. The Council was well placed to achieve this, having produced an 
H&WB strategy in 2007, and in having an Executive portfolio which included all key 
elements for Health and Wellbeing. 
 
The shadow Board had met three times to date; these meetings had been used to set 
up the Board’s terms of reference and devising a work programme. A draft Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy was also being developed and an officer working group had been 
set up. Other tasks included determining governance issues such as whether 
meetings should be held in public. 
 
The Board still needed to define the ambition behind the Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
and the Executive Member invited the Panel to propose a one page document 
around what they believed should be the vision of the Health & Wellbeing Board. This 
would need to be fed back to the Executive Member within the next few weeks. 
 
Local Healthwatch would also need to be set up; this would be a much broader 
organisation than the LINK, which was to be abolished. A member of Local 
Healthwatch would then become a key member of the Board. A Health and Care 
Network would also need to be set up to support Healthwatch. This required widely 
drawn input, including from the Youth Parliament. The Director of Social Care, Health 
& Housing reported that Healthwatch would be a new organisation with new 
governance, constitution and members. Healthwatch although tendered by the 
Council would be independent from the Council. 

4



 

 
Communicating to the public would be a key task for the Board and from April 2013 
the Board would hold its meetings in public. 
 
The Executive Member saw the Boards role as: 

• Achieving and maintaining clear understanding between partner 
organisations 

• Ensuring priorities were right 
• Ensuring focus was on local needs 
• Finding gaps in provision and resolving them 
• Joining up all health and care services 
• Driving quality improvement 
• Resolving conflicts in commissioning 
• Ensuring the patient voice is respected. 

 
In response to questions, the Executive Member said that the H&WB had a 
meaningful and empowered role. Its membership should not be too large to prevent it 
making good progress, and its ethos was based on partnership.  
 
The Executive Member stated that whilst the Borough had always made effective and 
best use of the resources available, he would continue to lobby for a fairer health 
funding allocation from Central Government for Bracknell Forest. Dr Riordan added 
that a recent letter jointly sent by the Chief Executives of both the Council and the 
PCT to the Department of Health challenged what was viewed as too small a budget  
allocation for public health.    

37. Transfer of Public Health Functions  
The Director of Adult Social Care, Health and Housing reported that a Berkshire-wide 
commissioning group had been established which comprised representatives from 
the six unitary authorities in Berkshire as well as the PCT Cluster Chief Executive. 
This Group had developed a model for Berkshire which comprised one Director of 
Public Health for Berkshire and local leaders for Public Health from each unitary 
council.   
 
The main concern expressed by the Regional Director of Public Health was the time it 
would take to get to the transition model. The six unitary authorities were making 
progress and were in agreement in principle. 
 
The Director of Public Health reported that the funding allocation from the 
Government would be ring-fenced and was likely to fund all current activity. She 
stated that the allocation would be based on a needs based weighted formula and 
consultation would be undertaken in the spring. To achieve the formula amount within 
a reasonable time, there may be a ‘pace of change’ element. She stated that it was 
important to get the allocation right, going forward from year one, the Department for 
Health would be calling to identify spend for 2012-13. Expenditure on public health 
varied from some £15 per head to over £100. Initially, all three boroughs in east 
Berkshire were due to receive £21 per head. In order to manage with fixed budgets 
and demand-led services, there may be a need for the councils to operate a form of 
risk sharing.  
 
The Director of Adult Social Care, Health & Housing reported that currently work 
around the transfer of Public Health was being done within existing resources. The 
Berkshire unitary councils were collaborating to minimise costs, for example the 

5



 

Director was taking the lead on Human Resources issues, and Reading BC on 
finance and contracting issues. 
 
It was reported that there had been an exponential increase in sexually transmitted 
diseases, outstripping some of the contracts in place. Sexual health would be one of 
the major areas that would be transferring to local authorities. It was noted that data 
around sexual health was difficult to obtain, however the Council would have 
responsibility for new services and contracts and would need to manage this. 
 
The Director of Social Care and Health reported that one of the opportunities that 
existed was to be creative around health promotion and consider how all Council 
services could contribute to the agenda. Leisure centres, health centres and other 
services could play a part in this. Every contact with the Council could have a public 
health dimension. 
 
The Chairman highlighted mental health as another major area that needed 
consideration given the current economic climate. It was acknowledged that dementia 
diagnosis required improvement, and this was being attended to. Representatives of 
Berkshire Healthcare Foundation Trust reported that they were working with the CCG 
to make links stronger. The Memory Clinic had proved to be busy and was being 
invested in.        

38. Heatherwood Hospital Birthing Unit  
The Panel received an update from the Heatherwood & Wexham Park Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust on the closure of the Birthing Unit at Heatherwood Hospital. 
 
Ms Slinger stated that it would not be possible to reopen the Heatherwood Birthing 
Unit for the reasons set out in the report before the Panel. In response to members’ 
queries, she made the following points: 
 
• Given the low demand for the service, fewer than 200 women a year were 

choosing Heatherwood as a birthing unit, the service had become 
unsustainable and unsafe. Further, there was a national shortage of midwives 
and it had become difficult to sustain staffing levels at Heatherwood. In 
addition, standards of care had massively increased leading to the need for 
much more qualified staff. All of these factors led to the birthing unit at 
Heatherwood becoming unsustainable. 

• The decision to move community midwife services to Frimley Park had been 
based on patient choice and the hospital at which  women were choosing to 
give birth. 

 
In terms of the general health of the Trust itself, Ms Slinger reported that the Trust 
had ended the financial year at its re-forecasted level. This had included savings. 
There was now recognition that simply limiting expenditure did not always lead to 
overall savings. 
 
Mrs Slinger reported that the Trust had significantly reduced the number of agency 
staff it used. An IT system was also now in place to allow more effective monitoring of 
patients.  
 
Ms Slinger stated that she recognised that the Trust was more costly than other local 
hospitals for the same services and that this was being addressed. 

39. Working Group Updates  

6



 

The Head of Overview and Scrutiny reported that the Health Reforms Working Group 
and the Health & Wellbeing Strategy Working Group had not met since the last Panel 
meeting. He stated that now the Health & Social Care Act had received Royal Assent, 
a briefing could be arranged for members.  
 
The Working Group on Health Reforms was focussing on the transfer of Public 
Health functions to local authorities. A draft of the Health & Wellbeing Strategy would 
be available in May, a detailed review would be made probably in a workshop format 
. 
 
The Head of Overview and Scrutiny stated that the PCT consultation on Shaping the 
Future was due to take place in the autumn.    

40. Overview and Scrutiny Bi-Annual Progress Report  
The Panel noted the Overview and Scrutiny activity over the period September 2011 
to February 2012, as set out in Section 5 of the report and appendices 1 and 2. The 
Head of Overview and Scrutiny reported that the annual report of Overview and 
Scrutiny had now been submitted to full Council. 

41. Date of Next Meeting  
14 June 2012. 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

7



This page is intentionally left blank

8



ACTIONS TAKEN : HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL MEETING – 26 
APRIL 2012   
 
Minute  
Number 

Action Required Action Taken 
 
31 

The Chairman agreed to 
investigate if Dr Phillip Lee 
MP’s model of healthcare for 
the local area had been 
published and if so, to 
circulate it amongst 
members of the 
Panel. 

Dr Lee’s report was circulated to Panel 
members on 16 May 

36 The Executive Member 
invited the Panel to propose 
a one page document 
around what they believed 
should be the vision of the 
Health & Wellbeing Board. 

Under preparation. The Panel’s Working 
Group on the Health & Well Being 
Strategy is due to consider this at its next 
meeting on 6 June 

 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



Unrestricted 

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
14 JUNE 2012 

 
 

TREATMENT FOR STROKES 
Assistant Chief Executive 

 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report invites the Health Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Panel to receive a 

presentation from Frimley Park Hospital NHS Foundation Trust on medical strokes 
and their treatment. 

 
2 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The presentation is expected to be delivered by Dr Brian Clarke, a Stroke 

Consultant at Frimley Park Hospital. Dr Clarke may be accompanied by Andrew 
Morris, Chief Executive, also possibly by a patient who has received stroke 
treatment at the hospital. 

 
3.2 The Panel will also be invited to view the national TV broadcasts by the NHS on 

recognising the signs of strokes. 
  
3.3 Background information on strokes, from the NHS Choices Website, is at Appendix 1. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS/ ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ ADVICE RECEIVED 
FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS/ EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT/ 
STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES / OTHER OFFICERS/ CONSULTATION – Not 
applicable 

 
Background Papers 
 
None 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Richard Beaumont – 01344 352283 
e-mail: richard.beaumont@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 8

11



Unrestricted 

Appendix 1 
 
 
 

Information on Strokes from the NHS Choices Website1  
A stroke is a serious medical condition that occurs when the blood supply to part of the brain 
is cut off.  
Like all organs, the brain needs the oxygen and nutrients provided by blood to function 
properly. If the supply of blood is restricted or stopped, brain cells begin to die. This can lead 
to brain damage and possibly death. 
Strokes are a medical emergency and prompt treatment is essential because the sooner a 
person receives treatment for a stroke, the less damage is likely to happen. 
Types of stroke 
There are two main causes of strokes: 
• ischaemic (accounting for over 80% of all cases): the blood supply is stopped due to 

a blood clot   
• haemorrhagic: a weakened blood vessel supplying the brain bursts and causes brain 

damage  
There is also a related condition known as a transient ischaemic attack (TIA), where the 
supply of blood to the brain is temporarily interrupted, causing a 'mini-stroke'. TIAs should be 
treated seriously as they are often a warning sign that a stroke is coming. 
Who is at risk from stroke? 
In England, strokes are a major health problem. Every year over 150,000 people have a 
stroke and it is the third largest cause of death, after heart disease and cancer. The brain 
damage caused by strokes means that they are the largest cause of adult disability in the 
UK. 
People who are over 65 years of age are most at risk from having strokes, although 25% of 
strokes occur in people who are under 65. It is also possible for children to have strokes.  
If you are south Asian, African or Caribbean, your risk of stroke is higher. This is partly 
because of a predisposition (a natural tendency) to developing diabetes and heart disease, 
which are two conditions that can cause strokes. 
Smoking, being overweight, lack of exercise and a poor diet are also risk factors for stroke. 
Also, conditions that affect the circulation of the blood, such as high blood pressure, high 
cholesterol, atrial fibrillation (an irregular heartbeat) and diabetes, increase your risk of 
having a stroke. 
Strokes can be treated and prevented 
Strokes can usually be successfully treated and also prevented. Eating a healthy diet, taking 
regular exercise, drinking alcohol in moderation and not smoking will dramatically reduce 
your risk of having a stroke. Lowering high blood pressure and cholesterol levels with 
medication also lowers the risk of stroke substantially.  
                                                
1
 http://www.nhs.uk/Conditions/Stroke/Pages/Introduction.aspx 

12



Unrestricted 

See the prevention section for more information about reducing the risk of having a stroke.  
Strokes can be treated using a combination of medicines and, in some cases, surgery. 
However, many people will require a long period of rehabilitation after a stroke and not all will 
recover fully. 
 
 

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



Unrestricted 

TO: HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
14 JUNE 2012 

  
 

DEMENTIA 
Director of Adult Social Care and Health 

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
1.1 To inform members of the main causes of Dementia, and services available in 

Bracknell Forest to support people with dementia and their families. 

2 RECOMMENDATION 
2.1 That the attached report is noted. 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
3.1 N/A – Information report. 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
4.1 N/A – Information report. 

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
5.1 The attached report (annex 1) gives information on the main causes of Dementia and 

the local services available.    
5.2 Local services are developed within the framework of the National Strategy for 

people with dementia “Living Well with Dementia”    
5.3 The Bracknell Forest Joint Commissioning Strategy for people with dementia was 

agreed in 2009, and is attached as annex 2. An update on progress on the action 
plan is also attached as annex 3. A recent review of progress has informed revised 
priorities in the light of the outcomes of the development programme “Next 
Generation Care” implemented by Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust.  
Relevant information is attached as annexes 4-5. 

 
Contact for further information 
Zoë Johnstone, 01344 351609 
Zoe.johnstone@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Mary Purnell 
Mary.purnell@berkshire.nhs.uk 
 
Gerry Crawford, 
Gerry.crawford@berkshire.nhs.uk 
 

Agenda Item 9

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



Services and Support for People who have Dementia 

1. Early Concerns 
Often the first signs that cause concern for people and their relatives are when an 
individual becomes forgetful of confused.   This is a difficult time for people who 
naturally may fear the worst, and may try to deny the problem, or put off doing 
anything about it.   However, when they do seek advice, this is often from the GP.   If 
appropriate, having screened out immediate physiological causes, the GP will refer 
the person to secondary health services for assessment and diagnosis. 
 

2. Referral and Diagnosis 

2.1. Non-emergency 
Referral to the joint Community Mental Health Team – Older Adults (CMHT-OA) is 
through the BHFT Common Point of Entry (CPE), where referrals are screened to 
determine the most appropriate next steps for the individual.   If it seems appropriate, 
the referral will then be passed to the locality team for assessment.   Assessment 
and diagnosis is through the Memory Clinic.   

Memory Clinic staff are- 

  Consultant in Psychiatry of Old Age 

  Staff Grade Psychiatrist 

  2 specialist nurses 

  Psychologist 

Assessments can be carried out at Church Hill House where the team is based, or in 
the person’s home. 

When a referral is received, the information is considered at the weekly allocations 
meeting, and the most appropriate workers are assigned to complete the 
assessment. 

The assessment will consider a range of potential causes for the symptoms 
presented, and will test for these to rule our any causes that are reversible or indicate 
causes other then dementia.   Often physical illnesses such as infections can give 
rise to confusion and forgetfulness, and treatment can see the person return to full 
health.   These tests will include full blood screening, and may also include scans.   
This service is also available to younger people who may have a dementia, and 
these individuals should always be referred to Neurology.  

2.2. Emergency 
There are occasions where a more urgent response is required, and it is 
inappropriate to wait for the weekly allocations meeting.   This may be, for example, 
where an individual has been found wandering, or has become distressed. In these 
circumstances, prioritisation is made and allocation takes place immediately. 
 

3. Causes of Dementia 
There are several diseases and conditions that result in dementia. These include: 
 
  Alzheimer's disease   The most common cause of dementia. During the course 

of the disease the chemistry and structure of the brain change, leading to the 
death of brain cells. Problems of short-term memory are usually the first 
noticeable sign. 

  Vascular dementia   If the oxygen supply to the brain fails due to vascular 
disease, brain cells are likely to die and this can cause the symptoms of vascular 

17



dementia. These symptoms can occur either suddenly, following a stroke, or over 
time through a series of small strokes.  

  Dementia with Lewy bodies   This form of dementia gets its name from tiny 
abnormal structures that develop inside nerve cells. Their presence in the brain 
leads to the degeneration of brain tissue. Symptoms can include disorientation 
and hallucinations, as well as problems with planning, reasoning and problem 
solving. Memory may be affected to a lesser degree. This form of dementia 
shares some characteristics with Parkinson's disease.  

  Fronto-temporal dementia (including Pick's disease)   In fronto-temporal 
dementia, damage is usually focused in the front part of the brain. At first, 
personality and behaviour changes are the most obvious signs.  

 

Rarer causes of dementia 
There are many other rarer diseases that may lead to dementia, including 
progressive supranuclear palsy, Korsakoff's syndrome, Binswanger's disease, 
HIV/AIDS, and Creutzfeldt Jakob disease (CJD). Some people with multiple 
sclerosis, motor neurone disease, Parkinson's disease and Huntington's disease may 
also develop dementia as a result of disease progression. 
 
Mild cognitive impairment 
Some individuals may have noticed problems with their memory, but a doctor may 
feel that the symptoms are not severe enough to warrant a diagnosis of Alzheimer's 
disease or another type of dementia, particularly if a person is still managing well. 
When this occurs, some doctors will use the term 'mild cognitive impairment' (MCI). 
Recent research has shown that individuals with MCI have an increased risk of 
developing dementia. The conversion rate from MCI to Alzheimer's is 10-20 per cent 
each year, so a diagnosis of MCI does not always mean that the person will go on to 
develop dementia. 
 
Who gets dementia? 
  There are about 800,000 people in the UK with dementia.  

  Dementia mainly affects people over the age of 65 and the likelihood increases 
with age. However, it can affect younger people: there are over 17,000 people in 
the UK under the age of 65 who have dementia.  

  Dementia can affect men and women.  

  Scientists are investigating the genetic background to dementia. It does appear 
that in a few rare cases the diseases that cause dementia can be inherited. Some 
people with a particular genetic make-up have a higher risk than others of 
developing dementia. 

 

18



After Diagnosis – “Living Well with Dementia” 

Complex Need - Critical 

Substantial Need 

Moderate Need 

Low need 

Prevention and  
Early Intervention 

�

Fig 1:   Summary of support 

4. Support in the Community 
 

4.1. Support from CMHT-OA 
 

Mental Health Practitioners 
  Community Psychiatric Nurses (CPN’s) 
  Social Workers (SW’s) 
  Occupational Therapist (OT)  
  Community Support Workers (CSW’s) 
  Speech & Language Therapist (SALT)  
  Psychology team 
  Home Treatment Team (short term care management) (see below) 
  Dementia Advisor 
 

4.1.1. Dementia Advisor 
Many people newly diagnosed with dementia do not yet need support from Social 
Care.   However, they have access to the Dementia Advisor, whose role is to give 
information, advice, and support, and signpost people to where they can find other 
support available.   Further information on this role will be available.   The role was 
first funded as part of a National pilot, and has proven so useful and so popular 
that permanent funding has been secured, and other localities are following the 
model. 

19



4.1.2. Care Co-ordination: (by any practitioner in the team) 
Assessment, diagnosis and treatment of mental health conditions for older adults 
are the core business of the team.  In addition, those people who have a clinical 
need for specialised integrated support will be eligible for care management (i.e. 
where psychiatric knowledge and expertise is essential to achieve effective Care 
Co-ordination).    
 
Examples of people needing Care Coordination:  
 

  A person with a severe mental illness/dementia with challenging behaviour  
who is at risk due to a lack of insight into their condition    

  Resistant to attempts to provide care/support 

Individuals and their families are encouraged and supported to consider a wide 
range of ways in which their social care needs can be met, in line with the 
personalisation agenda, and many families have been able to have support 
arrangements that meet their very individual needs and circumstances. 
 

4.1.3. Support for Carers 
Carers are entitled to an assessment and there are a range of options for support, 
including voluntary organisations.   (see Fig.1).   As part of the approach to 
personalised support arrangements carers can have a direct payment to organise 
support or activities that help them in their caring role.   They can also use the 
Timebank (further information to be circulated). 
 

4.1.4. Occupational Therapy:  
Occupational Therapist runs weekly Cognitive-Stimulation Therapy groups and 
carries out assessments of functional ability in individuals’ own homes.   Following 
assessments, recommendation will be made to support individuals to regain or 
retain skills for as long as possible. 
 

4.1.5. Speech & Language Therapy:  
This involves assessment of communication skills or memory, and 
feeding/swallowing difficulties, and development of programmes to support 
retention of skills. 
 

4.1.6. Psychology:  
Can provide in-depth neuropsychological assessments where required, also 
psychological based interventions on an individual or group basis 
 

4.1.7. Memory Clinic reviews  
These can be led by the nurse, doctor or psychologist, and monitor the individual 
and their treatment to ensure that it is as effective as possible, as the dementia 
progresses.   The work of the Consultant Psychiatrist contributes to national 
research into the treatment of Dementia. 
 

4.1.8. Understanding Dementia Carers Courses  
The memory clinic staff run a course for carers of people with dementia.   This is 8 
sessions over 8 weeks, and is run at Heathlands, where the individual with 
dementia can receive day care if necessary.   Aware of the fact that it may be 
difficult for some carers to attend, the team are intending to run an alternative 
course over one day. 

 

20



 
4.2. Home Treatment Team (HTT) 

‘A specialist, multidisciplinary mental health team which aims to provide short-term, 
intensive, home based assessment and treatment as an alternative to inpatient care’ 

 
This differs from the Community Mental Health Team in the following ways:- 

  It has the capacity to visit up to 4 times per day, for up to 12 wks 
  It  operates 7 days a week, 365 days per year  
  It provides support outside of office hours 
 

HTT and CMHT OA are key elements of the wider Community Mental Health 
Services for Older People. Both work together very closely and share a work 
base. 
 
Main Functions of HTT: 
  Crisis response 
  Person-centred risk assessment and management 
  Provide community treatment during most severe phase of illness 
  Provide telephone advice and support 
  Monitor mental well-being and response to treatment 
  Support patients to take active part in decisions about their mental health care 

and recovery 
  Educate and empower people/carers to manage symptoms 
  Help people maintain links with their social support network 

 

4.3. Home Support 
If individuals and their families need day to day support with tasks of daily living, or 
personal care, then this can be provided by:- 

  Regular visits by support workers from a domiciliary care agency, either 
arranged by the Council or through a Direct Payment.    

  The council’s specialist dementia home support team (usually for people with 
more complex needs) 

  Having a live-in carer which can also be arranged through an agency or 
Direct Payment 

  Employment of personal assistants using a Direct Payment 
  Using the befriending scheme run by BFVA 
  Using the Timebank 

 
4.4. How to refer 

Referrals detailing personal, medical and psychiatric history, any screening results 
and the presenting problem/reason for referral, should be sent to the Common Point 
of Entry for all Mental Health Services across Berkshire.  

 
The number to contact is: 0300 365 0300 

 

5. Residential Care 
People are supported to remain in their own homes for as long as possible.   
However, for some people there may come a time when this is no longer possible, for 
example because:- 

21



  Family carers are no longer able to provide the level of care required, even 
with additional support 

  The individual has no family, and the risks of living alone have become too 
great even with a package of support. 

In these circumstances, the practitioner from the team will, in consultation with the 
individual and family and friends, identify a suitable care home.   All care homes 
where people are funded by the Council have rigorous checks for quality, and are 
monitored closely through the Care Governance arrangements. 

 

6. Hospital Care 

6.1. Charles Ward 
The Older Adults inpatients wards in the East have historically remained under-
occupied for a number of years. This has resulted in an inefficient use of the 
available resources for older adult’s inpatient provision. BHFT reviewed the 
opportunity to consolidate ward 14, Heatherwood Hospital with the current activity on 
Charles Ward by June 2011. 

6.2. Support in Acute Hospitals 
The fact that people with dementia do not always receive good care in acute 
hospitals has been well publicised.    
 
Heatherwood and Wexham Park Hospital Trust have undertaken a programme of 
work to determine what they need to do to address this, and as a result have 
instigated a range of initiatives, including the following:- 

  Established a team with particular expertise in dementia, to advise staff on 
surgical and medical wards how they should support individuals.   They are 
alerted whenever a person who is known to have dementia, or who appears 
may have dementia, and they visit and tailor their advice accordingly 

  Use a discrete system to identify to ward staff when a person has dementia to 
indicate that they need specific support 

  specialist dietetics advice 

  Liaison Psychiatry service: this service carries out urgent old-age psychiatric 
assessments, and will assess before hospital discharge if it is inappropriate to 
wait for a memory clinic appointment. 

  Staff training for local care homes 

 
Royal Berks Hospital Trust also has a liaison psychiatry service 
 
Frimley Park Hospital Trust has a specialist liaison nurse who works with individuals 
to facilitate safe hospital discharge 
 

6.3. Discharge from Hospital (for people living in their own homes) 
Individuals may have been in hospital for one of two main reasons:- 

  Assessment and treatment of dementia 

  Treatment for a physical condition 

and may require reablement or intensive support for a period of time after they are 
discharged. 
 

22



 
 
 

6.3.1. Physical reablement – Intermediate Care 
The Council manages the intermediate care service for people with physical 
reablement needs.   This is run in partnership with Berkshire Healthcare NHS 
Foundation Trust (BHFT), and has two main components:-  

  The Bridgewell Centre, which offers reablement in a care home setting, 
and 

   the domiciliary team, which provides reablement service in people’s own 
home.    

Bridgewell will soon be opening a separate wing, which will offer physical 
reablement for people with dementia.    The domiciliary will shortly be receiving 
specialist training to ensure that they can respond appropriately to the physical 
reablement needs of people with dementia.    

Both Bridgewell and the domiciliary intermediate care team also provide intensive 
support to people who need it to prevent hospital admission. 

 

6.3.2. Dementia-related hospital discharge 
The Home Treatment team will provide the short term intensive support that may 
be required following hospitalisation because of dementia.   See 4.2 above.  

 
7. Safeguarding

People with Dementia are among the most vulnerable in the community.   The 
Council leads the local approach to safeguarding adults in partnership with other 
agencies.   Further detail is available, and the Annual Report for 2011-12 will be 
published in June.   

 
7.1. Mental Capacity Act 2005 (MCA) 

The MCA consolidates common law, and sets out the requirements for making 
decisions about care and treatment for people who lack capacity to make their own 
decisions.   The MCA is quite complex but in brief: 
 
Key principles of MCA are: 

  The assumption of capacity unless determined otherwise 

  Every possible step must be taken to enable the individual to make their own 
decisions 

  Unwise decisions do not indicate lack of capacity 

  Decisions made on behalf of the individual must be made in their best 
interests 

  The least restrictive course of action must be followed. 

The Act established the role of IMCA (Independent Mental Capacity Advocate) to act 
as an advocate for those individuals who lack capacity, but have no relatives or 
friends to advocate for them.   They also have a specific role if consideration is being 
given to depriving an individual of their liberty in a care home or hospital for the 
purposes of receiving care or treatment.  There are very clearly prescribed processes 
for this call the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS). 

 
7.1.1. Assessment of Capacity 

23



If it is thought that an individual may lack capacity to make a particular decision, 
then their ability to do so must be assessed.  To demonstrate capacity in relation 
to the specific decision in question, the individual must be able to:- 

  Understand the relevant information 

  Retain the relevant information 

  Weigh up the information and understand the implications to the decision 
in question 

  Communicate that decision. 

7.1.2. Best Interests Decisions 
If an individual is assessed as lacking capacity to make a specific decision then 
the “Best Interests decision” must be made on their behalf.    
 

The complexity and seriousness of the decision will determine who needs to be 
involved.    Some decisions will require information and expertise  from multi-
disciplinary teams. 
 

7.1.3. Lasting Powers of Attorney (LPA) 
Whilst an individual still has capacity, they can authorise another individual to 
make decisions on their behalf.   There are two kinds of LPA: 

  Personal welfare, including healthcare 

  Property and affairs (financial matters) 

7.1.4. Advance Decisions 
Before losing capacity individuals should be encouraged to consider making 
Advance Decisions.   This usually relates to refusing treatment in certain 
circumstances.   If an advance decision is properly written, signed and witnessed, 
then it must be honoured. 
 

7.2. Court of Protection 
In circumstances where there is disagreement in relation to whether an individual has 
capacity, or what decision id in their best interests then the matter can be referred to 
the Court of Protection for a ruling.   They may request independent expert 
assessments, to assist in making their determinations, and may appoint a deputy to 
act for someone who is unable to make their own decisions.   The Council hosts the 
Deputyship function for individuals who may not have other people available to take 
on this role. 

8. End of Life Care 
Wherever possible, people are supported to receive end-of-life care in accordance 
with their wishes.   Where people have made an advance decision to refuse 
treatment (see 7.1.4) then this must be respected.      
 
Often the final cause of death is a physical illness, rather than the dementia.  
Palliative care can be provided in individuals’ own homes, or in appropriate care 
home settings, supported by input from appropriate community nursing services such 
as Marie Curie, or Macmillan or specialists in Parkinson’s disease.

Carer Support 
Alzheimer’s Society  0845 306 0868 www.alzheimers.org.uk 
 
Alzheimer’s Dementia Support (Local):  

24



Terrie: 07516165647; Christine: 07516165665 
www.alzheimersdementiasupport.co.uk 
 
Princess Royal Trust for Carers: 0800 988 5462 / 01628 777217; Email: 
helpline@prtberks.plus.com; Web: www.carers.org 
 
Counsel and Care (Advice Service): 0845 300 7585; Web: 
www.counselandcare.org.uk 
 

 

25



26

This page is intentionally left blank



Commissioning strategy 

for people with dementia 

2009-2014 

27



C
on

te
nt

s
1.

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n

P
ag

e
3

2.
N

at
io

na
lc

on
te

xt
P

ag
e

4

3.
N

ee
ds

an
al

ys
is

P
ag

e
6

4.
Fi

na
nc

ia
lo

ve
rv

ie
w

P
ag

e
12

5.
C

ur
re

nt
su

pp
or

t
P

ag
e

13

6.
O

ur
pr

io
rit

ie
s

P
ag

e
14

1.
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
‘S
tr
at
eg

ic
co

m
m
is
si
on

in
g
ha
s
th
e
po

te
nt
ia
lt
o
ch
an
ge

th
e
sh
ap

e,
vo
lu
m
e

an
d
qu

al
ity

of
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es

to
m
ee
tt
he

ne
ed

s
of

lo
ca
lp
eo

pl
e.

U
nd

er
st
an
di
ng

pe
op

le
’s
ne
ed

s
an
d
as
pi
ra
tio
ns

by
se
ek
in
g
th
e
vi
ew

s
an
d

in
vo
lv
em

en
to

fp
eo

pl
e
of

al
la
ge

s,
ch
ild
re
n
an
d
fa
m
ilie

s,
an
d
on

go
in
g

di
al
og

ue
w
ith

ev
er
y
co

m
m
un
ity

is
th
e
ba

si
s
fo
r
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
co

m
m
is
si
on

in
g’
.1

B
ra

ck
ne

ll
Fo

re
st

C
ou

nc
il

th
ro

ug
h

its
A

du
lt

S
oc

ia
lC

ar
e

br
an

ch
is

co
m

m
itt

ed
to

en
ab

lin
g

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
an

d
th

ei
r

ca
re

rs
to

ac
ce

ss
ef

fe
ct

iv
e

su
pp

or
tt

ha
tp

ro
m

ot
es

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

,w
el

l-b
ei

ng
an

d
ch

oi
ce

.

Th
is

D
em

en
tia

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

S
tr

at
eg

y
se

ts
ou

tt
he

st
ra

te
gi

c
di

re
ct

io
n

fo
r

su
pp

or
tf

or

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
,i

nc
lu

di
ng

yo
un

ge
r

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
,f

ro
m

20
09

-2
01

4.
It

ha
s

be
en

de
ve

lo
pe

d
ba

se
d

on
an

an
al

ys
is

of
ne

ed
in

B
ra

ck
ne

ll
Fo

re
st

.

Th
e

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

S
tr

at
eg

y
is

se
ti

n
th

e
co

nt
ex

to
fo

ut
co

m
e-

ba
se

d
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g,

w
he

re
su

pp
or

ta
va

ila
bl

e
m

us
td

em
on

st
ra

te
im

pr
ov

ed
ou

tc
om

es
fo

r
in

di
vi

du
al

s.
Th

es
e

ou
tc

om
es

ca
n

be
gr

ou
pe

d
in

to
7

m
ai

n
ar

ea
s

2
.

• 
Im

pr
ov

in
g

he
al

th
an

d
em

ot
io

na
lw

el
l-b

ei
ng

• 
Im

pr
ov

in
g

qu
al

ity
of

lif
e

• 
M

ak
in

g
a

po
si

tiv
e

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

• 
In

cr
ea

si
ng

ch
oi

ce
an

d
co

nt
ro

l

• 
Fr

ee
do

m
fro

m
di

sc
rim

in
at

io
n

or
ha

ra
ss

m
en

t

• 
E

co
no

m
ic

w
el

l-b
ei

ng

• 
M

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
pe

rs
on

al
di

gn
ity

an
d

re
sp

ec
t.

A
s

w
el

la
s

su
pp

or
tb

ei
ng

ou
tc

om
e

fo
cu

se
d,

th
e

va
lu

es
,v

is
io

n
an

d
pr

in
ci

pl
es

of
of

fe
rin

g

ef
fe

ct
iv

e
su

pp
or

tt
o

pe
op

le
w

ho
ha

ve
de

m
en

tia
an

d
th

ei
r

ca
re

rs
ar

e
illu

st
ra

te
d

be
lo

w
.

• 
P

la
nn

in
g

su
pp

or
ta

nd
se

rv
ic

es
fro

m
th

e
ex

pe
rie

nc
e/

pe
rs

pe
ct

iv
e

of
th

e
pe

op
le

w
ho

us
e

se
rv

ic
es

an
d

th
ei

r
ca

re
rs

• 
 E

qu
al

ity
of

ac
ce

ss
to

hi
gh

qu
al

ity
an

d
ap

pr
op

ria
te

su
pp

or
t,

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

an
d 

ad
vi

ce
 

• 
 E

na
bl

in
g

ch
oi

ce
th

ro
ug

h
cr

ea
tiv

e
su

pp
or

to
pt

io
ns

,s
uc

h
as

pr
ov

id
in

g 

pe
rs

on
al

is
ed

bu
dg

et
s,

to
m

ax
im

is
e

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 

1
T
he

C
om

m
is
si
on

fo
r
S
oc

ia
lC

ar
e
In
sp

ec
tio

n
(2
00

6)
T
he

st
at
e
of

so
ci
al

ca
re

in
E
ng

la
nd

20
05

-2
00

6.
N
ew

ca
st
le
:C

om
m
is
si
on

fo
r
S
oc

ia
lC

ar
e
In
sp

ec
tio

n
(p
65

)
2
D
ep

ar
tm

en
to

fH
ea

lth
(2
00

6)
O
ur

he
al
th
,o

ur
ca

re
,o

ur
sa

y:
a
ne

w
di
re
ct
io
n
fo
r
co

m
m
un

ity
se

rv
ic
es

.
Lo

nd
on

:D
ep

ar
tm

en
to

fH
ea

lth

2 
3 

28



• 
S

hi
fti

ng
fro

m
se

rv
ic

es
pr

ov
id

ed
di

re
ct

ly
by

th
e

C
ou

nc
il

to
co

m
m

un
ity

ba
se

d

ac
tiv

iti
es

an
d

su
pp

or
t,

en
ab

lin
g

pe
op

le
to

m
ai

nt
ai

n
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
an

d
a

‘n
or

m
al

’

lif
e

• 
 W

or
ki

ng
in

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p

w
ith

he
al

th
,v

ol
un

ta
ry

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

,p
eo

pl
e

w
ho

us
e 

se
rv

ic
es

an
d

th
ei

r
ca

re
rs

 

• 
 A

n
ho

ne
st

an
d

tr
an

sp
ar

en
ta

pp
ro

ac
h

to
al

la
sp

ec
ts

of
w

or
k

• 
 I

nc
re

as
ed

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g
an

d
aw

ar
en

es
s

in
so

ci
et

y
an

d
a

re
co

gn
iti

on
th

at
 

de
m

en
tia

is
no

ta
n

in
ev

ita
bl

e
pa

rt
of

ol
d

ag
e 

• 
 T

im
el

y
di

ag
no

si
s

an
d

in
te

rv
en

tio
n

• 
 P

ro
vi

di
ng

ca
re

to
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

th
at

is
ou

tc
om

e
ba

se
d,

no
tt

im
e

or
ta

sk

or
ie

nt
ed

.

2.
N

at
io

na
lc

on
te

xt
D

em
en

tia
is

a
ke

y
lo

ca
lp

rio
rit

y
w

ith
th

e
nu

m
be

r
of

pe
op

le
liv

in
g

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

ex
pe

ct
ed

to
ris

e
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
ov

er
th

e
ne

xt
25

ye
ar

s.
Th

e
G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
re

ce
nt

ly

pu
bl

is
he

d
N

at
io

na
lD

em
en

tia
S

tr
at

eg
y

su
pp

or
ts

th
e

di
re

ct
io

n
of

tr
av

el
w

e
ha

d

em
ba

rk
ed

on
.T

he
th

re
e

m
ai

n
th

em
es

na
tio

na
lly

fo
r

de
m

en
tia

su
pp

or
ta

re
:

• 
 I

m
pr

ov
in

g
aw

ar
en

es
s:

in
cr

ea
se

d
pu

bl
ic

an
d

pr
of

es
si

on
al

aw
ar

en
es

s
of

de
m

en
tia

an
d

an
in

fo
rm

ed
an

d
ef

fe
ct

iv
e

w
or

kf
or

ce
fo

r
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

• 
 E

ar
ly

di
ag

no
si

s
an

d
in

te
rv

en
tio

n:
go

od
qu

al
ity

ea
rly

di
ag

no
si

s
an

d
in

te
rv

en
tio

n
fo

r

al
l;

go
od

qu
al

ity
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
fo

r
th

os
e

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

an
d

th
ei

r
ca

re
rs

an
d

en
ab

lin
g

co
nt

in
ui

ty
of

su
pp

or
ta

nd
ad

vi
ce

• 
 L

iv
in

g
w

el
lw

ith
de

m
en

tia
,b

y
im

pr
ov

in
g

th
e

qu
al

ity
of

ca
re

fo
r

pe
op

le
w

ith

de
m

en
tia

fro
m

di
ag

no
si

s:
in

ge
ne

ra
lh

os
pi

ta
ls

;h
om

e
ca

re
;r

es
pi

te
ca

re
/s

ho
rt

br
ea

ks
;j

oi
nt

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g

st
ra

te
gy

fo
r

de
m

en
tia

;i
nt

er
m

ed
ia

te
ca

re
;i

m
pr

ov
ed

de
m

en
tia

ca
re

in
ca

re
ho

m
es

an
d

im
pr

ov
ed

re
gi

st
ra

tio
n

an
d

in
sp

ec
tio

n
of

ca
re

ho
m

es
.

Th
e

Tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n

of
A

du
lt

S
oc

ia
lC

ar
e

an
d

co
m

m
itm

en
tt

o
pe

rs
on

al
is

ed
su

pp
or

ta
ls

o

in
flu

en
ce

s
th

is
D

em
en

tia
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g
S

tr
at

eg
y,

as
do

es
ot

he
r

ev
id

en
ce

of
go

od

pr
ac

tic
e

in
de

m
en

tia
su

pp
or

t.
U

nd
er

pi
nn

in
g

al
lr

ec
en

ts
oc

ia
lc

ar
e

an
d

he
al

th
na

tio
na

l

gu
id

an
ce

is
th

e
im

po
rt

an
ce

of
ch

oi
ce

,a
nd

th
e

po
w

er
to

m
ak

e
de

ci
si

on
s,

fo
r

pe
op

le

w
ho

us
e

so
ci

al
ca

re
an

d
he

al
th

se
rv

ic
es

.

K
ey

m
es
sa
g
es

fr
o
m
n
at
io
n
al
p
o
lic
y

• 
E

ar
lie

r
di

ag
no

si
s

an
d

in
te

rv
en

tio
n

• 
In

cr
ea

si
ng

pu
bl

ic
an

d
pr

of
es

si
on

al
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g

of
de

m
en

tia
an

d
re

du
ci

ng
th

e

st
ig

m
a

an
d

di
sc

rim
in

at
io

n
as

so
ci

at
ed

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

• 
A

n
em

ph
as

is
on

liv
in

g
w

el
lw

ith
de

m
en

tia

• 
M

or
e

em
ph

as
is

on
th

e
‘w

ho
le

jo
ur

ne
y’

of
de

m
en

tia
,f

ro
m

ea
rly

di
ag

no
si

s

th
ro

ug
h

to
en

d
of

lif
e

ca
re

• 
P

ro
m

ot
in

g
so

ci
al

in
cl

us
io

n,
so

ci
al

ca
pi

ta
la

nd
co

m
m

un
ity

co
he

si
on

•
P

ro
vi

si
on

of
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n

an
d

te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

to
en

ab
le

pe
op

le
to

re
m

ai
n

in
th

ei
r

ow
n

ho
m

es

• 
Im

pr
ov

in
g

ac
ce

ss
to

,a
nd

qu
al

ity
of

,s
up

po
rt

fo
r

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
an

d
th

ei
r

ca
re

rs

• 
P

ro
vi

di
ng

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

th
at

is
tim

el
y

an
d

ac
ce

ss
ib

le

• 
A

fo
cu

s
on

ho
w

su
pp

or
tw

ill
im

pr
ov

e
pe

op
le

’s
ou

tc
om

es

• 
D

ev
el

op
in

g
st

ro
ng

er
pe

er
su

pp
or

tn
et

w
or

ks
to

he
lp

pe
op

le
co

pe

• 
S

up
po

rt
in

g
ca

re
rs

• 
M

or
e

ch
oi

ce
an

d
a

lo
ud

er
vo

ic
e

fo
r

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
an

d
ca

re
rs

an
d

fu
lly

in
vo

lv
in

g
pe

op
le

in
th

ei
r

su
pp

or
to

pt
io

ns

• 
In

tr
od

uc
in

g
pe

rs
on

al
is

ed
bu

dg
et

s
in

so
ci

al
ca

re
to

en
ab

le
a

tr
an

sp
ar

en
t

ap
pr

oa
ch

to
en

tit
le

m
en

ta
nd

gr
ea

te
r

ch
oi

ce
of

su
pp

or
to

pt
io

ns

• 
R

ed
uc

in
g

in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s

an
d

im
pr

ov
in

g
ac

ce
ss

to
su

pp
or

ti
n

th
e

co
m

m
un

ity

• 
E

ns
ur

e
th

at
pe

op
le

,r
eg

ar
dl

es
s

of
et

hn
ic

ity
,r

ac
e,

di
sa

bi
lit

y,
se

xu
al

or
ie

nt
at

io
n,

ag
e,

ge
nd

er
or

re
lig

io
n,

re
ce

iv
e

fa
ir

tr
ea

tm
en

t

•
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
w

or
ki

ng
,w

ith
pe

op
le

w
ho

us
e

se
rv

ic
es

,t
he

ir
ca

re
rs

an
d

ot
he

r

ag
en

ci
es

,t
o

pr
ov

id
e

ef
fe

ct
iv

e
su

pp
or

t

• 
Jo

in
tc

om
m

is
si

on
in

g
be

tw
ee

n
S

oc
ia

lC
ar

e
an

d
H

ea
lth

to
pr

ov
id

e
hi

gh
qu

al
ity

su
pp

or
tt

ha
tm

ee
ts

in
di

vi
du

al
ne

ed
s

in
a

fle
xi

bl
e,

re
sp

on
si

ve
w

ay
.

5
4

29



3.
N

ee
ds

an
al

ys
is

 
W
h
at
is
a
n
ee
d
s
an
al
ys
is
?

N
ee

ds
an

al
ys

is
is

a
w

ay
of

es
tim

at
in

g
th

e
ex

te
nt

an
d

na
tu

re
of

th
e

ne
ed

s
of

a
po

pu
la

tio
n

so
th

at
ap

pr
op

ria
te

su
pp

or
tc

an
be

pl
an

ne
d

ac
co

rd
in

gl
y.

Th
e

ne
ed

s
an

al
ys

is
ca

n

• 
H

el
p

es
tim

at
e

th
e

cu
rr

en
ta

nd
fu

tu
re

ne
ed

s
of

a
po

pu
la

tio
n

• 
In

di
ca

te
th

e
ge

og
ra

ph
ic

al
di

st
rib

ut
io

n
of

ne
ed

• 
Id

en
tif

y
th

os
e

pe
op

le
w

ho
ar

e
at

gr
ea

te
st

ris
k

• 
H

el
p

id
en

tif
y

th
e

ga
p

be
tw

ee
n

m
et

an
d

un
m

et
ne

ed
.

A
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

ne
ed

s
an

al
ys

is
is

ba
se

d
on

a
ba

la
nc

e
of

na
tio

na
la

nd
lo

ca
ld

at
a

an
d

co
ns

is
ts

of
de

m
og

ra
ph

y,
in

ci
de

nc
e

an
d

pr
ev

al
en

ce
,r

is
k

fa
ct

or
da

ta
an

d
lo

ca
la

nd
se

rv
ic

e
us

er
da

ta
.

S
u
m
m
ar
y
o
f
q
u
an
ti
ta
ti
ve

d
at
a

D
em

o
g
ra
p
h
y

3

• 
O

ve
r

th
e

ne
xt

fiv
e

ye
ar

s
th

e
po

pu
la

tio
n

of
B

ra
ck

ne
ll

Fo
re

st
ag

ed
18

-6
4

is
ex

pe
ct

ed
to

ris
e

by
2.

3%
,a

nd
fo

r
th

os
e

ag
ed

65
an

d
ov

er
,b

y
20

%
• 

Th
er

e
ar

e
m

ar
gi

na
lly

m
or

e
w

om
en

th
en

m
en

(1
8+

ye
ar

s)
(5

1%
w

om
en

,4
9%

m
en

)
an

d
th

is
di

ffe
re

nc
e

w
ill

in
cr

ea
se

sl
ig

ht
ly

ov
er

th
e

ne
xt

fiv
e

ye
ar

s
to

52
%

w
om

en
• 

Th
e

av
er

ag
e

lif
e

ex
pe

ct
an

cy
of

w
om

en
is

82
.6

ye
ar

s
an

d
m

en
,7

8.
6

ye
ar

s,
w

hi
ch

is
sl

ig
ht

ly
hi

gh
er

th
an

th
e

av
er

ag
e

fo
r

th
e

S
ou

th
E

as
ta

nd
1.

3
ye

ar
s

hi
gh

er
th

an
th

e
na

tio
na

la
ve

ra
ge

• 
Th

e
et

hn
ic

pr
of

ile
of

th
e

bo
ro

ug
h

is
ch

an
gi

ng
.W

he
re

as
th

e
ce

ns
us

20
01

sh
ow

ed
4.

9%
w

er
e

fro
m

no
n-

w
hi

te
m

in
or

ity
gr

ou
ps

,2
00

8
da

ta
fro

m
sc

ho
ol

s
sh

ow
s

10
.5

%
ar

e
fro

m
no

n-
w

hi
te

gr
ou

ps
.T

hi
s

ris
es

to
11

.5
%

w
he

n
ta

ki
ng

da
ta

fro
m

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

on
ly.

4

In
ci
d
en
ce

an
d
p
re
va
le
n
ce

5

• 
In

E
ng

la
nd

an
d

W
al

es
th

er
e

ar
e

es
tim

at
ed

to
be

16
5,

00
0

ne
w

ca
se

s
of

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
ea

ch
ye

ar
.T

hi
s

su
gg

es
ts

an
in

ci
de

nc
e

ra
te

in
B

ra
ck

ne
ll

Fo
re

st
of

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y
28

0
ne

w
ca

se
s

ea
ch

ye
ar

• 
U

si
ng

na
tio

na
lp

re
va

le
nc

e
fig

ur
es

an
d

th
e

la
te

st
es

tim
at

ed
po

pu
la

tio
n

fig
ur

es
,

th
er

e
ar

e
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y

93
6

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
liv

in
g

in
B

ra
ck

ne
ll

Fo
re

st
• 

A
ta

ny
po

in
ti

n
tim

e,
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y

a
th

ird
of

th
e

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
liv

in
g

in
B

ra
ck

ne
ll

Fo
re

st
ar

e
re

ce
iv

in
g

su
pp

or
tp

ai
d

fo
r

by
A

du
lt

S
oc

ia
lC

ar
e

3
O
ffi
ce

fo
r
N
at
io
na

lS
ta
tis
tic
s,

da
ta

ex
tr
ac

tJ
ul
y
20

08
4
B
ra
ck
ne

ll
F
or
es

tl
oc

al
sc
ho

ol
s
da

ta
5
ht
tp
://
ag

ei
ng

.o
xf
or
dj
ou

rn
al
s.
or
g/
cg

i/c
on

te
nt
/fu

ll/
35

/2
/1
54

an
d
ba

ck
in
g
fig

ur
es

fr
om

M
en

ta
lH

ea
lth

O
bs

er
va

to
ry

fig
ur
es

fo
r
de

m
en

tia
,2

00
8

• 
Ju

st
ov

er
tw

o
th

ird
s

(6
9%

)o
fp

eo
pl

e
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
ar

e
ag

ed
ov

er
80

• 
Th

er
e

ar
e

m
or

e
m

en
th

an
w

om
en

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

in
th

e
65

to
74

ag
e

ra
ng

e.
A

fte
r

th
is

ag
e

th
er

e
ar

e
m

or
e

w
om

en
.T

hi
s

m
ay

be
du

e
to

th
e

lo
ng

er
lif

e
ex

pe
ct

an
cy

of
w

om
en

• 
D

em
en

tia
af

fe
ct

s
a

th
ird

of
al

lp
eo

pl
e

w
ho

ar
e

95
ye

ar
s

of
ag

e
or

ol
de

r
• 

Th
er

e
ar

e
pr

op
or

tio
na

te
ly

m
or

e
pe

op
le

fro
m

B
M

E
co

m
m

un
iti

es
w

ith
ea

rly
on

se
t

de
m

en
tia

bu
tt

hi
s

is
du

e
to

th
e

yo
un

ge
r

ag
e

pr
of

ile
of

th
e

B
M

E
co

m
m

un
ity

• 
Th

er
e

is
a

la
rg

er
pr

op
or

tio
n

of
ol

de
r

pe
op

le
liv

in
g

in
B

ul
lb

ro
ok

,P
rie

st
w

oo
d

an
d

G
ar

th
an

d
A

sc
ot

.T
he

re
fo

re
th

es
e

w
ar

ds
ar

e
m

os
tl

ik
el

y
to

ha
ve

a
hi

gh
er

pr
op

or
tio

n
of

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
.P

rie
st

w
oo

d
an

d
G

ar
th

is
th

e
w

ar
d

m
os

tl
ik

el
y

to
ha

ve
th

e
hi

gh
es

tn
um

be
r

of
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

as
it

ha
s

th
e

hi
gh

es
tn

um
be

r
of

ol
de

r
pe

op
le

liv
in

g
th

er
e

ou
to

fa
ll

th
e

w
ar

ds
in

B
ra

ck
ne

ll
Fo

re
st

• 
Th

e
nu

m
be

r
of

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
re

ce
iv

in
g

su
pp

or
tf

ro
m

A
du

lt
S

oc
ia

lC
ar

e
is

lik
el

y
to

ris
e

by
20

%
ov

er
th

e
ne

xt
fiv

e
ye

ar
s.

R
is
k
fa
ct
o
rs

A
st

ud
y

by
th

e
M

ed
ic

al
R

es
ea

rc
h

C
ou

nc
il

sh
ow

ed
th

e
fo

llo
w

in
g

as
ke

y
ris

k
fa

ct
or

s
in

th
e

in
ci

de
nc

e
of

de
m

en
tia

:

• 
A

ge
-

th
e

ol
de

r
yo

u
ar

e,
th

e
m

or
e

at
ris

k
yo

u
ar

e
•

G
en

de
r-

m
or

e
w

om
en

th
an

m
en

,a
lth

ou
gh

th
is

m
ay

be
du

e
to

th
e

lo
ng

er
lif

e
ex

pe
ct

an
cy

of
w

om
en

• 
S

tr
ok

e-
th

os
e

w
ho

ha
ve

a
hi

st
or

y
of

st
ro

ke
s

ap
pe

ar
to

be
at

m
or

e
ris

k.
H

ow
ev

er
,

th
is

w
as

di
sp

ut
ed

in
a

fu
rt

he
r

ev
al

ua
tio

n
of

th
e

da
ta

w
hi

ch
sh

ow
ed

no
di

ffe
re

nc
e

ac
ro

ss
ar

ea
s

w
ith

gr
ea

te
r

in
ci

de
nc

e
of

st
ro

ke
s

•
P

ar
ki

ns
on

’s
di

se
as

e-
th

os
e

w
ith

th
e

di
se

as
e

w
er

e
m

or
e

at
ris

k.

Th
is

st
ud

y
al

so
id

en
tif

ie
d

so
m

e
pr

ot
ec

tiv
e

fa
ct

or
,t

ha
ti

s,
fa

ct
or

s
th

at
ar

e
as

so
ci

at
ed

w
ith

a
lo

w
er

in
ci

de
nc

e
of

de
m

en
tia

:

• 
S

el
f-

pe
rc

ei
ve

d
he

al
th

-
th

e
in

ci
de

nc
e

of
de

m
en

tia
w

as
lo

w
er

am
on

gs
tt

ho
se

st
at

in
g

th
ei

r
he

al
th

w
as

‘g
oo

d’
or

‘e
xc

el
le

nt
’

• 
G

en
er

al
an

ae
st

he
tic

-
th

e
in

ci
de

nc
e

of
de

m
en

tia
w

as
lo

w
er

am
on

gs
tp

eo
pl

e
w

ho
ha

d
re

ce
iv

ed
a

ge
ne

ra
la

na
es

th
et

ic
.T

hi
s

ef
fe

ct
w

as
co

ns
is

te
nt

w
ith

in
cr

ea
si

ng
ex

po
su

re
to

an
ae

st
he

si
a;

th
e

ris
k

of
de

m
en

tia
go

tl
ow

er
as

th
e

nu
m

be
r

of
ex

po
su

re
s

to
a

ge
ne

ra
la

na
es

th
et

ic
go

th
ig

he
r.

7
6

30



L
o
ca
ld
at
a

• 
Th

is
da

ta
w

as
ex

tr
ac

te
d

fro
m

ou
r

A
du

lt
S

oc
ia

lC
ar

e
da

ta
ba

se

• 
Th

er
e

w
er

e
31

5
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

w
ith

an
op

en
re

fe
rr

al
to

A
du

lt
S

oc
ia

lC
ar

e

on
9t

h
S

ep
te

m
be

r
20

08

• 
Th

er
e

ar
e

ar
ou

nd
10

0
ne

w
re

fe
rr

al
s

to
A

du
lt

S
oc

ia
lC

ar
e

ea
ch

ye
ar

.T
hi

s
is

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y
a

th
ird

of
th

e
es

tim
at

ed
ne

w
ca

se
s

of
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

ea
ch

ye
ar

in
th

e
B

or
ou

gh
.T

hi
s

pr
op

or
tio

n
ap

pe
ar

s
lo

w
bu

tt
hi

s
co

ul
d

be
fo

r
re

as
on

s

su
ch

as
pe

op
le

m
ay

no
th

av
e

a
di

ag
no

si
s

of
de

m
en

tia
,p

eo
pl

e
m

ay
al

re
ad

y
be

re
ce

iv
in

g
se

rv
ic

es
fro

m
an

ot
he

r
te

am
so

w
ou

ld
no

tc
ou

nt
as

a
ne

w
re

fe
rr

al
or

th
ey

m
ay

no
ta

cc
es

s
so

ci
al

ca
re

• 
A

s
th

e
nu

m
be

rs
of

pe
op

le
ag

ed
65

+
fro

m
th

e
no

n-
w

hi
te

B
M

E
gr

ou
ps

is
ve

ry

sm
al

li
n

B
ra

ck
ne

ll
Fo

re
st

(n
at

io
na

lc
en

su
s

20
01

sh
ow

ed
on

ly
13

7
pe

op
le

),
it

is

di
ffi

cu
lt

to
dr

aw
fir

m
co

nc
lu

si
on

s
fro

m
th

e
et

hn
ic

m
on

ito
rin

g
an

al
ys

is
.T

he

an
al

ys
is

,s
uc

h
as

it
is

,d
oe

s
sh

ow
th

e
pr

op
or

tio
n

of
pe

op
le

fro
m

B
M

E

co
m

m
un

iti
es

re
ce

iv
in

g
su

pp
or

tf
ro

m
A

du
lt

S
oc

ia
lC

ar
e,

is
br

oa
dl

y
in

-li
ne

w
ith

th
e

pr
op

or
tio

n
of

pe
op

le
in

th
e

bo
ro

ug
h

• 
A

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y
tw

o-
th

ird
s

of
pe

op
le

be
in

g
su

pp
or

te
d

by
A

du
lt

S
oc

ia
lC

ar
e

ar
e

re
ce

iv
in

g
su

pp
or

ta
th

om
e

in
th

e
co

m
m

un
ity

,a
nd

on
e

th
ird

ar
e

in
re

si
de

nt
ia

lo
r

nu
rs

in
g

ca
re

ho
m

es

• 
Th

e
nu

m
be

r
of

pe
op

le
su

pp
or

te
d

is
se

tt
o

ris
e

fro
m

31
5

to
37

8
(2

0%
in

cr
ea

se
)

ov
er

th
e

ne
xt

fiv
e

ye
ar

s.

P
le

as
e

se
e

ap
pe

nd
ix

A
fo

r
th

e
fu

ll
qu

an
tit

at
iv

e
ne

ed
s

an
al

ys
is

.

S
u
m
m
ar
y
o
f
q
u
al
it
at
iv
e
d
at
a

W
ay
s
w
e
en
g
ag
ed

w
it
h
p
eo
p
le
to

in
fo
rm

th
e
co
n
su
lt
at
io
n
p
ap
er

E
xp

lo
ra

to
ry

w
or

k
w

ith
ke

y
in

di
vi

du
al

s
an

d
gr

ou
ps

(M
ay

-
Ju

ly
20

08
)

• 
1:

1
in

te
rv

ie
w

s
w

ith
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
co

nd
uc

te
d

by
m

em
be

rs
of

pr
oj

ec
tt

ea
m

• 
Fo

cu
s

gr
ou

ps
w

ith
se

rv
ic

e
pr

ov
id

er
s

• 
A

tte
nd

in
g

vo
lu

nt
ar

y
se

ct
or

ac
tiv

iti
es

E
th

ni
c

co
m

m
un

iti
es

an
d

fo
r

pe
op

le
w

ith
a

le
ar

ni
ng

di
sa

bi
lit

y.
W

e
al

so
en

ga
ge

d
w

ith

pe
op

le
w

ho
ha

ve
de

m
en

tia
,c

ar
er

s,
pe

op
le

w
ho

w
or

k
in

S
oc

ia
lC

ar
e,

H
ea

lth
,t

he

vo
lu

nt
ar

y
se

ct
or

an
d

ot
he

r
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
,t

o
ob

ta
in

a
w

id
e

ra
ng

e
of

vi
ew

s
an

d

pe
rs

pe
ct

iv
es

on
th

e
fu

tu
re

di
re

ct
io

n
of

su
pp

or
t.

Th
e

fig
ur

e
be

lo
w

illu
st

ra
te

s
so

m
e

of
th

e
gr

ou
ps

an
d

in
di

vi
du

al
s

w
e

en
ga

ge
d

in
th

e

qu
al

ita
tiv

e
ne

ed
s

an
al

ys
is

.

In
th

e
ex

pl
or

at
or

y
w

or
k

to
de

ve
lo

p
th

e
de

m
en

tia
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g
st

ra
te

gy
,i

tw
as

 

es
se

nt
ia

lt
ha

tt
he

ke
y

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

in
de

m
en

tia
ca

re
an

d
su

pp
or

tw
er

e
in

vo
lv

ed
.V

ie
w

s 

of
pe

op
le

an
d

gr
ou

ps
w

ho
m

ay
be

se
ld

om
he

ar
d

in
th

e
C

ou
nc

il’s
pl

an
ni

ng
pr

oc
es

se
s 

w
er

e
ac

tiv
el

y
so

ug
ht

,s
uc

h
as

vi
ew

s
re

ga
rd

in
g

de
m

en
tia

su
pp

or
tf

or
B

la
ck

an
d

M
in

or
ity

 

8 
9

31



K
ey

p
o
in
ts
fr
o
m
an
al
ys
is
o
f
in
te
rv
ie
w
d
at
a

• 
G

en
er

al
ly,

se
rv

ic
es

an
d

su
pp

or
tc

ur
re

nt
ly

av
ai

la
bl

e
w

or
k

w
el

la
nd

th
e

as
pe

ct
s

th
at

m
ak

e
th

em
w

or
k

w
el

ls
ho

ul
d

be
in

te
gr

al
to

al
lf

ut
ur

e
se

rv
ic

e
pr

ov
is

io
n

• 
Th

e
su

pp
or

ta
va

ila
bl

e
fro

m
th

e
vo

lu
nt

ar
y

se
ct

or
is

hi
gh

ly
re

ga
rd

ed
an

d
en

ab
le

s

pe
op

le
to

m
ai

nt
ai

n
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
an

d
qu

al
ity

of
lif

e

• 
P

eo
pl

e
w

or
ki

ng
in

de
m

en
tia

ca
re

sh
ou

ld
be

aw
ar

e
of

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

is
su

es

• 
H

om
e

ca
re

se
rv

ic
es

ne
ed

to
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y
m

ee
tt

he
ne

ed
s

of
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

• 
P

eo
pl

e
va

lu
e

th
e

se
rv

ic
e

pr
ov

id
ed

by
th

e
B

ra
ck

ne
ll

Fo
re

st
in

-h
ou

se
D

em
en

tia

H
om

e
C

ar
e

Te
am

• 
D

ay
ca

re
op

tio
ns

ne
ed

to
be

va
rie

d,
w

ith
lo

ng
er

ho
ur

s,
fle

xi
bl

e
to

m
ee

ti
nd

iv
id

ua
l

ne
ed

s
an

d
w

ith
a

ra
ng

e
of

st
im

ul
at

in
g

an
d

m
ea

ni
ng

fu
la

ct
iv

iti
es

to
be

av
ai

la
bl

e

• 
Th

e
ge

ne
ra

lp
ub

lic
an

d
he

al
th

an
d

so
ci

al
ca

re
w

or
ke

rs
ne

ed
to

be
m

or
e

aw
ar

e
of

de
m

en
tia

• 
A

ra
ng

e
of

re
sp

ite
ca

re
op

tio
ns

sh
ou

ld
be

av
ai

la
bl

e

• 
P

eo
pl

e
w

ou
ld

lik
e

em
er

ge
nc

y
su

pp
or

tt
o

be
av

ai
la

bl
e

• 
C

ar
er

s
an

d
fa

m
ilie

s
of

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
pl

ay
a

cr
uc

ia
lr

ol
e

an
d

ne
ed

to
be

w
el

l-s
up

po
rt

ed
,b

ot
h

em
ot

io
na

lly
an

d
pr

ac
tic

al
ly

• 
S

om
e

pe
op

le
ex

pe
rie

nc
e

fin
an

ci
al

w
or

rie
s,

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

fa
m

ilie
s

of
yo

un
ge

r
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

• 
A

cc
es

s
to

su
pp

or
tc

an
so

m
et

im
es

be
di

ffi
cu

lt.
P

eo
pl

e
m

ay
no

tk
no

w
ab

ou
t

av
ai

la
bl

e
su

pp
or

t,
su

pp
or

tm
ay

no
tb

e
av

ai
la

bl
e

w
he

n
re

qu
ire

d
an

d
tr

an
sp

or
ti

s
a

bi
g

ch
al

le
ng

e

• 
P

eo
pl

e
fro

m
B

M
E

gr
ou

ps
m

ay
no

tb
e

re
ce

iv
in

g
ap

pr
op

ria
te

di
ag

no
se

s
or

ca
re

• 
P

eo
pl

e
w

ith
le

ar
ni

ng
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s
ar

e
at

a
hi

gh
er

ris
k

of
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

de
m

en
tia

an
d

se
rv

ic
es

ne
ed

to
be

ab
le

to
su

pp
or

tp
eo

pl
e

w
ith

co
m

pl
ex

ne
ed

s

• 
Yo

un
ge

r
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

sh
ou

ld
ha

ve
ag

e
ap

pr
op

ria
te

se
rv

ic
es

• 
Th

er
e

ar
e

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n

an
d

ho
us

in
g

re
la

te
d

su
pp

or
ti

ss
ue

s
fo

r
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

• 
S

ta
tu

to
ry

se
rv

ic
es

co
ul

d
en

co
ur

ag
e

pe
op

le
to

vo
lu

nt
ee

r
an

d
he

lp
pr

ov
id

e
ca

re

an
d

su
pp

or
tf

or
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

• 
E

xi
st

in
g

re
so

ur
ce

s
co

ul
d

be
us

ed
in

ne
w

an
d

cr
ea

tiv
e

w
ay

s

• 
Th

e
de

di
ca

tio
n

an
d

sk
ill

of
st

af
fi

s
ve

ry
im

po
rt

an
ti

n
pr

ov
id

in
g

ef
fe

ct
iv

e
ca

re
.

Th
e

fin
di

ng
s

fro
m

th
e

qu
al

ita
tiv

e
ne

ed
s

an
al

ys
is

w
er

e
su

m
m

ar
is

ed
in

a
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n

pa
pe

r.
Th

e
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n
do

cu
m

en
t,

as
w

el
la

s
su

m
m

ar
is

in
g

th
e

ke
y

fin
di

ng
s,

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

ot
he

r
dr

iv
er

s
be

hi
nd

th
e

de
ve

lo
pm

en
to

ft
he

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

S
tr

at
eg

y.
A

w
id

e
ra

ng
e

of
pe

op
le

w
er

e
in

vi
te

d
to

co
m

m
en

to
n

th
e

pr
op

os
ed

pr
io

rit
ie

s
fo

r
de

m
en

tia

su
pp

or
to

ffe
re

d
by

B
ra

ck
ne

ll
Fo

re
st

C
ou

nc
il.

S
u
m
m
ar
y
o
f
co
n
su
lt
at
io
n

 

W
ay
s
w
e
en
g
ag
ed

w
it
h
p
eo
p
le
to

in
fo
rm

th
e
co
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g

st
ra
te
g
y

C
on

su
lta

tio
n

(O
ct

ob
er

20
08

-
Ja

nu
ar

y
20

09
)

• 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n
pa

pe
r

an
d

fe
ed

ba
ck

fo
rm

se
nt

to
pe

op
le

w
ho

ex
pr

es
se

d
an

in
te

re
st

af
te

r
th

e
qu

al
ita

tiv
e

ne
ed

s
an

al
ys

is

• 
E

ve
nt

s
at

te
nd

ed
an

d
fa

ci
lit

at
ed

di
sc

us
si

on
of

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n

pa
pe

rh
el

d

• 
P

eo
pl

e
an

d
gr

ou
ps

id
en

tif
ie

d
w

ho
ha

d
no

tp
ar

tic
ip

at
ed

in
th

e
ne

ed
s

an
al

ys
is

ap
pr

oa
ch

ed
fo

r
fe

ed
ba

ck
.

K
ey

p
o
in
ts
fr
o
m
an
al
ys
is
o
f
co
n
su
lt
at
io
n
fe
ed
b
ac
k

• 
O

ve
ra

ll,
re

sp
on

de
nt

s
to

th
e

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n

pa
pe

r
ga

ve
po

si
tiv

e
fe

ed
ba

ck
ab

ou
t

th
e

pa
pe

r

• 
P

eo
pl

e
ge

ne
ra

lly
ag

re
ed

w
ith

th
e

pr
op

os
ed

pr
io

rit
ie

s

• 
A

n
on

go
in

g
th

em
e

th
at

em
er

ge
d

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
th

e
fe

ed
ba

ck
w

as
th

e
la

ck
of

de
ta

il

in
th

e
pa

pe
r

co
nc

er
ni

ng
ho

w
th

e
pr

io
rit

ie
s

w
ou

ld
be

ac
hi

ev
ed

• 
Th

re
e

ne
w

is
su

es
ar

os
e

as
a

re
su

lt
of

th
e

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n,

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly

• 
E

m
ph

as
is

on
th

e
im

po
rt

an
ce

of
in

vo
lv

em
en

to
ff

am
ilie

s
an

d
pr

ov
id

in
g

fe
ed

ba
ck

on
w

ha
ti

s
ha

pp
en

in
g

in
de

m
en

tia
su

pp
or

t,
in

cl
ud

in
g

th
e

im
pa

ct

of
th

e
ne

w
tr

an
sf

or
m

in
g

ad
ul

ts
oc

ia
lc

ar
e

ag
en

da

• 
N

ee
d

to
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

e
th

e
pr

ov
is

io
n

of
te

le
ca

re
an

d
as

si
st

iv
e

te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

fo
r

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia

• 
P

eo
pl

e
of

te
n

ha
ve

m
or

e
th

an
on

e
co

nd
iti

on
,a

nd
se

rv
ic

es
ne

ed
to

re
sp

on
d

to
sp

ec
ia

lis
ed

co
nc

er
ns

of
th

es
e

pe
op

le

Th
e

fin
di

ng
s

fro
m

th
e

qu
al

ita
tiv

e
ne

ed
s

an
al

ys
is

an
d

th
e

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n

ha
ve

in
fo

rm
ed

an
d

in
flu

en
ce

d
th

e
pr

io
rit

y
se

tti
ng

in
th

is
D

em
en

tia
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g
S

tr
at

eg
y.

P
le

as
e

se
e

ap
pe

nd
ix

B
fo

r
th

e
fu

ll
qu

al
ita

tiv
e

ne
ed

s
an

al
ys

is
an

d
fin

di
ng

s
fro

m
th

e

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n.

10
 

11
 

32



4.
Fi

na
nc

ia
lo

ve
rv

ie
w

 
5.

C
ur

re
nt

su
pp

or
ti

n 
S

pe
ci

al
is

ts
up

po
rt

pr
ov

id
ed

di
re

ct
ly

by
A

du
lt

S
oc

ia
lC

ar
e

to
th

os
e

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

is
 

B
ra

ck
ne

ll
Fo

re
st

m
an

ag
ed

by
se

ve
ra

lt
ea

m
s:

 •
 

Jo
in

tH
ea

lth
an

d
S

oc
ia

lC
ar

e
su

pp
or

ti
s

of
fe

re
d

by
th

e
C

om
m

un
ity

M
en

ta
lH

ea
lth

Te
am

fo
r

O
ld

er
A

du
lts

(C
M

H
T

O
A

)

 •
 

S
pe

ci
al

is
th

om
e

ca
re

su
pp

or
ti

s
pr

ov
id

ed
by

th
e

D
em

en
tia

H
om

e
S

up
po

rt
Te

am

 •
 

R
es

id
en

tia
lc

ar
e

is
pr

ov
id

ed
by

th
e

C
ou

nc
il

at
H

ea
th

la
nd

s

 •
 

D
ay

su
pp

or
ti

s
av

ai
la

bl
e

at
H

ea
th

la
nd

s
da

y
ce

nt
re

.

Th
e

O
ld

er
P

eo
pl

e
an

d
Lo

ng
Te

rm
C

on
di

tio
ns

Te
am

an
d

th
e

C
om

m
un

ity
R

es
po

ns
e

an
d

R
e-

ab
le

m
en

tT
ea

m
w

ith
in

A
du

lt
S

oc
ia

lC
ar

e
al

so
pr

ov
id

e
su

pp
or

tf
or

pe
op

le
w

ith

de
m

en
tia

.D
at

a
av

ai
la

bl
e

do
es

no
tc

ur
re

nt
ly

al
lo

w
us

to
es

tim
at

e
th

e
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

fro
m

th
es

e
su

pp
or

ts
er

vi
ce

s
di

re
ct

ly
fo

r
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

.

Th
e

C
ou

nc
il

al
so

co
nt

ra
ct

s
w

ith
in

de
pe

nd
en

tp
ro

vi
de

rs
of

ho
m

e
ca

re
su

pp
or

t,

re
si

de
nt

ia
lc

ar
e

ho
m

es
an

d
nu

rs
in

g
ho

m
es

an
d

su
pp

or
ts

vo
lu

nt
ar

y
se

ct
or

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

by
pr

ov
id

in
g

gr
an

ts
to

th
e

A
sc

ot
A

re
a

A
lz

he
im

er
’s

(T
rip

le
A

)s
up

po
rt

gr
ou

p
an

d
A

ge

C
on

ce
rn

.

Th
e

m
aj

or
fin

an
ci

al
co

nc
er

ns
w

ill
be

th
e

im
pa

ct
in

th
e

m
ed

iu
m

or
lo

ng
er

te
rm

of

in
cr

ea
si

ng
se

rv
ic

e
de

m
an

d
fro

m
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
ch

an
ge

s
up

on
se

rv
ic

es
.T

he
C

ou
nc

il’s

ov
er

al
lb

ud
ge

ts
tr

at
eg

y
fo

r
th

e
ne

xt
th

re
e

fin
an

ci
al

ye
ar

s
20

09
/1

0
to

20
11

/1
2

re
co

gn
is

es
pr

es
su

re
s

of
a

de
m

og
ra

ph
ic

na
tu

re
.

K
ey

fi
n
an
ci
al
m
es
sa
g
es

 •
 

Th
e

fin
an

ci
al

im
pa

ct
of

in
cr

ea
se

d
de

m
an

d
fro

m
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
ch

an
ge

s
w

ill
im

pa
ct

in
th

e
m

ed
iu

m
an

d
lo

ng
er

te
rm

.P
ro

vi
si

on
fo

r
th

is
w

ill
ne

ed
to

be
co

ns
id

er
ed

as

pa
rt

of
th

e
C

ou
nc

il’s
ov

er
al

la
nn

ua
lb

ud
ge

ts
et

tin
g

pr
oc

es
s.

 •
 

N
ee

d
to

w
or

k
to

w
ar

ds
w

ay
s

of
m

on
ito

rin
g

th
e

pr
op

or
tio

n
of

th
e

A
du

lt
S

oc
ia

lC
ar

e

bu
dg

et
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

sp
en

to
n

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
.

Ward 14
Nursing care

24 hour home
support 

Older People and LTC team 

Community Response and Re-ablement team

Respite care Day Hospital 

Dementia Home Care Team 

CMHTOA 

Memory Clinic 

Emergency Duty Team

Home Care providers

Age Concern Handyperson Scheme
GP’s and Primary Care staff 

Crisis Response Service 

Heathlands Day Centre 

Triple A 
Age Concern Day Centre 

Triple A

Keep Mobile 

Primary Care Bracknell Alzheimer’s 

Telecare 
Housing support and providers 

Anchor Staying Put Samaritans 

The Look-in 

CAB

Leisure Centre 

GPs and Primary Care Staff

Meals on Wheels 

Recommend strengthening
investment in prevention

and early intervention 

Complex need

Substantial need

Moderate need

Low need 

12
 

13
 

33



6.
O

ur
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

Th
e

na
tio

na
lp

ol
ic

y
co

nt
ex

ta
nd

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
ne

ed
s

as
se

ss
m

en
th

av
e

in
fo

rm
ed

th
e

pr
io

rit
ie

s
fo

r
fu

tu
re

de
m

en
tia

su
pp

or
ti

n
B

ra
ck

ne
ll

Fo
re

st
.T

he
ne

ed
s

an
al

ys
is

id
en

tif
ie

d

th
e

po
pu

la
tio

n
tr

en
ds

,i
nc

id
en

ce
,p

re
va

le
nc

e
an

d
ris

k
fa

ct
or

s
fo

r
de

m
en

tia
,a

s
w

el
la

s

ho
w

so
ci

al
ca

re
su

pp
or

ti
s

cu
rr

en
tly

of
fe

re
d

an
d

ut
ilis

ed
.

P
eo

pl
e’

s
vi

ew
s

an
d

ex
pe

rie
nc

es
w

er
e

al
so

co
lle

ct
ed

an
d

an
al

ys
ed

an
d

ar
e

ce
nt

ra
lt

o

th
e

vi
si

on
an

d
de

ve
lo

pm
en

to
ft

he
pr

io
rit

ie
s

fo
r

de
m

en
tia

su
pp

or
ti

n
B

ra
ck

ne
ll

Fo
re

st
.

Th
is

se
ct

io
n

de
m

on
st

ra
te

s
ho

w
th

e
pr

io
rit

ie
s

w
or

k
to

w
ar

ds
im

pr
ov

in
g

pe
op

le
’s

ou
tc

om
es

as
id

en
tif

ie
d

in
‘O

ur
he

al
th

,o
ur

ca
re

,o
ur

sa
y’

6
.

Im
pr

ov
in

g
he

al
th

an
d

em
ot

io
na

lw
el

l-b
ei

ng
“S
er
vi
ce
s
pr
om

ot
e
an
d
fa
ci
lit
at
e
th
e
he
al
th

an
d
em

ot
io
na
lw

el
l-b

ei
ng

of
pe

op
le
w
ho

us
e
th
e
se
rv
ic
es
”

O
ur

pr
io

rit
ie

s
fo

r
th

e
ne

xt
5

ye
ar

s
H

ow
w

e
w

ill
kn

ow
th

is
ha

s
be

en
ac

hi
ev

ed

C
on

tin
ue

to
bu

ild
on

su
cc

es
sf

ul
su

pp
or

ta
nd

se
rv

ic
es

an
d

ch
an

ge
an

d
ad

ap
ts

up
po

rt
av

ai
la

bl
e,

as
ap

pr
op

ria
te

,t
o

m
ee

tp
eo

pl
e’

s
ne

ed
s

A
dd

re
ss

ba
rr

ie
rs

to
ac

ce
ss

in
g

su
pp

or
t:

in
fo

rm
at

io
n;

tim
el

y
su

pp
or

t;
tr

an
sp

or
ta

nd
fin

an
ce

s

In
ve

st
ig

at
e

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

fo
r

us
in

g
ex

is
tin

g
re

so
ur

ce
s

in
cr

ea
tiv

e
w

ay
s

to
m

ee
tp

eo
pl

e’
s

ne
ed

s

C
on

tin
ue

to
in

ve
st

in
st

af
fd

ev
el

op
m

en
ta

nd
tr

ai
ni

ng
,i

nc
lu

di
ng

sp
ec

ia
lis

td
em

en
tia

tr
ai

ni
ng

W
or

k
m

or
e

cl
os

el
y

w
ith

th
e

N
H

S
to

fu
nd

an
d

pr
ov

id
e

su
pp

or
tf

or
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

an
d

th
ei

r
ca

re
rs

W
or

k
w

ith
th

e
N

H
S

to
w

ar
ds

go
od

qu
al

ity
ea

rly
di

ag
no

si
s

an
d

in
te

rv
en

tio
n

P
ro

vi
de

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
su

pp
or

tf
or

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
to

en
ab

le
th

em
to

st
ay

in
th

ei
r

ow
n

ho
m

es
fo

r
lo

ng
er

an
d

to
he

lp
w

ith
tim

el
y

di
sc

ha
rg

e
fro

m
ho

sp
ita

l

In
te

rn
al

ca
re

pa
th

w
ay

s
an

d
su

pp
or

t
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
w

ill
be

re
vi

ew
ed

S
er

vi
ce

us
e

da
ta

w
ill

de
m

on
st

ra
te

eq
ua

lit
y

of
ac

ce
ss

to
su

pp
or

t

N
ew

an
d

in
no

va
tiv

e
su

pp
or

to
pt

io
ns

w
ill

be
av

ai
la

bl
e

Tr
ai

ni
ng

da
ta

w
ill

de
m

on
st

ra
te

th
is

an
d

ou
tc

om
es

fo
r

pe
op

le
us

in
g

se
rv

ic
es

w
ill

im
pr

ov
e

A
jo

in
td

em
en

tia
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g
st

ra
te

gy
w

ill
be

in
pl

ac
e

N
um

be
rs

of
pe

op
le

re
ce

iv
in

g
an

ea
rly

di
ag

no
si

s
w

ill
in

cr
ea

se

D
at

a
w

ill
de

m
on

st
ra

te
a

gr
ea

te
r

pr
op

or
tio

n
of

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
st

ay
in

g
in

th
ei

r
ow

n
ho

m
es

fo
r

lo
ng

er

I m
pr

ov
in

g
qu

al
ity

of
lif

e
“S
er
vi
ce
s
pr
om

ot
e
in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

an
d
su
pp

or
tp

eo
pl
e
to

liv
e
a
fu
lfi
lle
d
lif
e
m
ak
in
g
th
e

m
os
to

ft
he
ir
ca
pa

ci
ty
an
d
po

te
nt
ia
l”

O
ur

pr
io

rit
ie

s
fo

r
th

e
ne

xt
5

ye
ar

s
H

ow
w

e
w

ill
kn

ow
th

is
ha

s
be

en
ac

hi
ev

ed

In
ve

st
ig

at
e

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

fo
r

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g

S
pe

ci
al

is
th

om
e

ca
re

pr
ov

id
er

s
w

ill
be

in
sp

ec
ia

lis
td

em
en

tia
ho

m
e

ca
re

pr
ov

id
er

pl
ac

e
se

rv
ic

es

S
up

po
rt

cu
rr

en
th

om
e

ca
re

pr
ov

id
er

s
to

H
om

e
ca

re
pr

ov
id

er
s

w
ill

ac
ce

ss
tr

ai
ni

ng
in

cr
ea

se
st

af
fs

ki
lls

an
d

aw
ar

en
es

s
of

of
fe

re
d

by
th

e
C

ou
nc

il
de

m
en

tia

R
ec

ru
it

st
af

ft
o

in
cr

ea
se

th
e

ca
pa

ci
ty

of
ou

r
Th

e
D

em
en

tia
H

om
e

C
ar

e
Te

am
w

ill
su

pp
or

t
sp

ec
ia

lis
th

om
e

ca
re

m
or

e
pe

op
le

In
ve

st
ig

at
e

ho
w

to
im

pr
ov

e
da

y
op

tio
ns

fo
r

Th
er

e
w

ill
be

a
ra

ng
e

of
da

y
op

tio
ns

fo
r

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

In
ve

st
ig

at
e

ne
w

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

fo
r

pr
ov

is
io

n
Th

er
e

w
ill

be
va

rio
us

re
sp

ite
op

tio
ns

av
ai

la
bl

e
of

a
ra

ng
e

of
fle

xi
bl

e
re

sp
ite

ca
re

In
cr

ea
se

aw
ar

en
es

s
fo

r
ca

re
rs

of
w

ho
to

E
m

er
ge

nc
y

D
ut

y
Te

am
w

ill
be

re
sp

on
di

ng
to

co
nt

ac
ti

n
an

ou
t-

of
-h

ou
rs

em
er

ge
nc

y
m

or
e

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia

W
or

k
w

ith
ho

us
in

g
pr

ov
id

er
s

an
d

ot
he

r
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n
w

ill
be

av
ai

la
bl

e
te

am
s

w
ith

in
th

e
C

ou
nc

il
to

ad
dr

es
s

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n

ne
ed

s
of

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia

P
ro

vi
de

m
or

e
op

tio
ns

of
sp

ec
ia

lis
td

em
en

tia
Th

er
e

w
ill

be
m

or
e

sp
ec

ia
lis

tr
es

id
en

tia
lc

ar
e

re
si

de
nt

ia
lc

ar
e

av
ai

la
bl

e

6
D
ep

ar
tm

en
to

fH
ea

lth
(2
00

6)
O
ur

he
al
th
,o

ur
ca

re
,o

ur
sa

y:
a
ne

w
di
re
ct
io
n
fo
r
co

m
m
un

ity
se

rv
ic
es

.

Lo
nd

on
:D

ep
ar
tm

en
to

fH
ea

lth
15

14

34



M
ak

in
g

a
po

si
tiv

e
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
“C

ou
nc
ils

en
su
re

th
at

pe
op

le
w
ho

us
e
th
ei
rs
er
vi
ce
s
ar
e
en
co
ur
ag

ed
to

pa
rt
ic
ip
at
e
fu
lly

in
th
ei
rc

om
m
un

ity
an
d
th
at

th
ei
rc

on
tr
ib
ut
io
n
is
va
lu
ed

eq
ua
lly

w
ith

ot
he
rp

eo
pl
e”

O
ur

pr
io

rit
ie

s
fo

r
th

e
ne

xt
5

ye
ar

s
H

ow
w

e
w

ill
kn

ow
th

is
ha

s
be

en
ac

hi
ev

ed

F r
ee

do
m

fro
m

di
sc

rim
in

at
io

n
or

ha
ra

ss
m

en
t

“T
ho

se
w
ho

ne
ed

so
ci
al
ca
re

ha
ve

eq
ua
la
cc
es
s
to

se
rv
ic
es

w
ith
ou

th
in
dr
an
ce

fro
m

di
sc
rim

in
at
io
n
or

pr
ej
ud

ic
e;

th
ey

fe
el
sa
fe
&
ar
e
sa
fe
gu

ar
de

d
fro

m
ha
rm

”

O
ur

pr
io

rit
ie

s
fo

r
th

e
ne

xt
5

ye
ar

s
H

ow
w

e
w

ill
kn

ow
th

is
ha

s
be

en
ac

hi
ev

ed

C
on

tin
ue

to
su

pp
or

ta
nd

va
lu

e
ca

re
rs

an
d

P
eo

pl
e

w
ill

be
in

vo
lv

ed
in

th
e

C
ou

nc
il’s

th
ei

r
fa

m
ilie

s
an

d
in

vo
lv

e
ca

re
rs

an
d

pe
op

le
pl

an
ni

ng
pr

oc
es

se
s

us
in

g
se

rv
ic

es
in

th
e

de
ve

lo
pm

en
to

fn
ew

in
iti

at
iv

es

C
on

tin
ue

to
su

pp
or

ta
nd

va
lu

e
th

e
w

or
k

of
Th

e
C

ou
nc

il
w

ill
co

nt
in

ue
to

su
pp

or
t

th
e

vo
lu

nt
ar

y
se

ct
or

;l
oo

ki
ng

at
ne

w
w

ay
s

to
vo

lu
nt

ar
y

se
ct

or
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
w

or
k

w
ith

th
e

vo
lu

nt
ar

y
se

ct
or

to
im

pr
ov

e
pe

op
le

’s
liv

es

W
or

k
to

w
ar

ds
in

cr
ea

si
ng

th
e

nu
m

be
r

of
Th

er
e

w
ill

be
m

or
e

vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
w

or
ki

ng
in

pe
op

le
vo

lu
nt

ee
rin

g
in

de
m

en
tia

ca
re

,f
or

th
is

ar
ea

ex
am

pl
e,

by
m

ak
in

g
ne

w
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
w

ith
co

lle
ge

s

Im
pl

em
en

ta
sy

st
em

w
ith

in
th

e
C

ou
nc

il
of

A
n

in
vo

lv
em

en
ta

nd
en

ga
ge

m
en

ts
tr

at
eg

y
in

vo
lv

in
g

ca
re

rs
an

d
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

,
w

ill
be

in
pl

ac
e

as
ap

pr
op

ria
te

,i
n

th
e

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t,

m
on

ito
rin

g
an

d
ev

al
ua

tio
n

of
de

m
en

tia
su

pp
or

ta
nd

se
rv

ic
es

,i
nc

lu
di

ng
th

e
tr

an
sf

or
m

in
g

ad
ul

ts
oc

ia
lc

ar
e

ag
en

da

I n
cr

ea
si

ng
ch

oi
ce

an
d

co
nt

ro
l

“P
eo

pl
e,

an
d
th
ei
r
ca
re
rs
,h

av
e
ac
ce
ss

to
ch
oi
ce

an
d
co

nt
ro
lo
fg

oo
d
qu

al
ity

se
rv
ic
es
,

w
hi
ch

ar
e
re
sp
on

si
ve

to
in
di
vi
du

al
ne
ed

s
an
d
pr
ef
er
en
ce
s”

O
ur

pr
io

rit
ie

s
fo

r
th

e
ne

xt
5

ye
ar

s
H

ow
w

e
w

ill
kn

ow
th

is
ha

s
be

en
ac

hi
ev

ed

In
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p
w

ith
he

al
th

se
rv

ic
es

,w
or

k
M

or
e

pe
op

le
fro

m
B

M
E

gr
ou

ps
w

ill
ha

ve
an

to
w

ar
ds

te
st

s
fo

r
de

m
en

tia
th

at
ar

e
ea

rly
di

ag
no

si
s

of
de

m
en

tia
an

d
ha

ve
ap

pr
op

ria
te

fo
r

pe
op

le
fro

m
al

lb
ac

kg
ro

un
d

ap
pr

op
ria

te
su

pp
or

t
an

d
th

at
de

m
en

tia
ca

re
is

cu
ltu

ra
lly

se
ns

iti
ve

Im
pr

ov
e

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p

w
or

ki
ng

be
tw

ee
n

Th
e

te
am

s
w

ill
be

w
or

ki
ng

to
ge

th
er

to
le

ar
ni

ng
di

sa
bi

lit
y

an
d

de
m

en
tia

se
rv

ic
es

pr
ov

id
e

ap
pr

op
ria

te
su

pp
or

t

E
xp

an
d

th
e

op
tio

ns
fo

r
su

pp
or

tf
or

yo
un

ge
r

Th
er

e
w

ill
be

m
or

e
su

pp
or

to
pt

io
ns

av
ai

la
bl

e
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

In
ve

st
ig

at
e

th
e

op
tio

ns
fo

r
ha

vi
ng

a
D

em
en

tia
A

D
em

en
tia

C
ar

e
A

dv
is

er
ro

le
w

ill
be

in
pl

ac
e

C
ar

e
A

dv
is

er
ro

le
,w

hi
ch

co
ul

d
be

a
si

ng
le

at
C

M
H

TO
A

po
in

to
fc

on
ta

ct
fo

r
pe

op
le

to
ac

ce
ss

ad
vi

ce
an

d
su

pp
or

t

In
ve

st
ig

at
e

w
ay

s
to

in
cr

ea
se

pe
op

le
’s

A
w

ar
en

es
s

ra
is

in
g

ac
tiv

iti
es

w
ill

ta
ke

pl
ac

e
aw

ar
en

es
s

of
de

m
en

tia
,b

ot
h

in
th

e
ge

ne
ra

l
an

d
be

ev
al

ua
te

d
po

pu
la

tio
n

an
d

in
he

al
th

an
d

so
ci

al
ca

re
w

or
ke

rs

D
ev

el
op

a
st

ra
te

gi
c

ap
pr

oa
ch

to
in

cl
us

io
n

E
qu

al
ity

im
pa

ct
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
w

ill
be

an
d

eq
ua

lit
y

in
de

m
en

tia
ca

re
,i

nc
lu

di
ng

co
nd

uc
te

d
on

al
ln

ew
se

rv
ic

es
an

d
pl

an
s

ad
dr

es
si

ng
th

e
ne

ed
s

of
Le

sb
ia

n,
G

ay
,

B
is

ex
ua

la
nd

Tr
an

sg
en

de
r

pe
op

le
(L

G
B

T)

S
pe

ci
al

is
ts

up
po

rt
to

co
nt

in
ue

to
be

av
ai

la
bl

e
D

iff
er

en
tt

ea
m

s
w

ill
be

w
or

ki
ng

to
ge

th
er

to
to

pe
op

le
w

ith
m

ul
tip

le
/c

om
pl

ex
di

ag
no

se
s

pr
ov

id
e

ap
pr

op
ria

te
an

d
fle

xi
bl

e
su

pp
or

t
or

se
ns

or
y

lo
ss

an
d

de
m

en
tia

W
or

k
w

ith
ca

re
rs

,p
ro

vi
de

rs
an

d
ou

r
pa

rt
ne

rs
P

eo
pl

e
w

ill
ha

ve
pe

rs
on

al
is

ed
bu

dg
et

s
to

im
pl

em
en

ts
up

po
rt

ed
se

lf-
as

se
ss

m
en

t
an

d
in

di
vi

du
al

is
ed

bu
dg

et
s

fo
r

pe
op

le
w

ith
de

m
en

tia
an

d
th

ei
r

ca
re

rs

P
ro

m
ot

e
up

ta
ke

of
di

re
ct

pa
ym

en
ts

to
en

ab
le

Th
e

nu
m

be
rs

of
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

m
or

e
ch

oi
ce

fo
r

pe
op

le
w

ho
us

e
de

m
en

tia
re

ce
iv

in
g

di
re

ct
pa

ym
en

ts
w

ill
in

cr
ea

se
se

rv
ic

es
an

d
th

ei
r

ca
re

rs

In
cr

ea
se

d
pr

ov
is

io
n

of
Te

le
ca

re
an

d
as

si
st

iv
e

M
or

e
pe

op
le

w
ill

ha
ve

as
si

st
iv

e
te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
to

en
ab

le
pe

op
le

w
ith

de
m

en
tia

to
st

ay
at

ho
m

e

17
16

35



Ec
on

om
ic

w
el

l-b
ei

ng
“P
eo

pl
e
ar
e
no

td
is
ad

va
nt
ag

ed
fin
an
ci
al
ly
an
d
ha
ve

ac
ce
ss

to
ec
on

om
ic
op

po
rt
un

ity

an
d
ap

pr
op

ria
te

re
so
ur
ce
s
to

ac
hi
ev
e
th
is
”

O
ur

pr
io

rit
ie

s
fo

r
th

e
ne

xt
5

ye
ar

s
H

ow
w

e
w

ill
kn

ow
th

is
ha

s
be

en
ac

hi
ev

ed

B
e

aw
ar

e
of

th
e

fin
an

ci
al

ha
rd

sh
ip

s
fa

m
ilie

s
P

eo
pl

e
w

ill
ac

ce
ss

ad
vi

so
ry

se
rv

ic
es

ca
n

fa
ce

an
d

pr
om

ot
e

be
ne

fit
s

an
d

fin
an

ci
al

ad
vi

so
ry

se
rv

ic
es

H
el

p
pe

op
le

to
fin

d
ou

td
iff

er
en

tw
ay

s
th

at
M

ea
su

re
ta

ke
up

of
di

ffe
re

nt
fu

nd
in

g
st

re
am

s
so

ci
al

ca
re

an
d

ho
us

in
g

su
pp

or
tc

an
be

av
ai

la
bl

e
fu

nd
ed

M
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

pe
rs

on
al

di
gn

ity
an

d
re

sp
ec

t
“A
du

lt
so
ci
al
ca
re

pr
ov
id
e
a
co
nf
id
en
tia
l,
se
cu
re

se
tt
in
g
w
hi
ch

re
sp
ec
ts
th
e
in
di
vi
du

al
,

he
lp
in
g
to

pr
es
er
ve

pe
op

le
’s
di
gn

ity
”

O
ur

pr
io

rit
ie

s
fo

r
th

e
ne

xt
5

ye
ar

s
H

ow
w

e
w

ill
kn

ow
th

is
ha

s
be

en
ac

hi
ev

ed

W
he

re
ve

r
po

ss
ib

le
,m

ak
e

su
re

su
pp

or
ti

s
C

on
tin

ue
to

su
pp

or
tv

ol
un

ta
ry

se
ct

or
av

ai
la

bl
e

in
co

m
m

un
ity

se
tti

ng
s

an
d

be
ac

tiv
iti

es
w

hi
ch

ad
vo

ca
te

th
is

et
ho

s.
M

or
e

de
si

gn
ed

to
he

lp
pe

op
le

to
m

ai
nt

ai
n

so
ci

al
pe

op
le

w
ill

ac
ce

ss
su

pp
or

ti
n

th
e

co
m

m
un

ity
co

nt
ac

ts
an

d
a

‘n
or

m
al

’l
ife

E
nc

ou
ra

ge
al

lp
ro

vi
de

rs
of

de
m

en
tia

su
pp

or
t

M
or

e
pr

ov
id

er
s

w
ill

ac
ce

ss
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
to

ac
ce

ss
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
tr

ai
ni

ng
an

d
w

e
w

ill
tr

ai
ni

ng
re

qu
ire

al
lp

ro
vi

de
rs

w
e

co
nt

ra
ct

w
ith

to
si

gn
up

to
th

e
ad

ul
ts

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g

po
lic

y
an

d
ac

ce
ss

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

tr
ai

ni
ng

W
or

k
to

im
pr

ov
e

de
m

en
tia

ca
re

in
ca

re
C

on
tr

ac
ts

w
ill

be
m

on
ito

re
d

an
d

su
pp

or
t

ho
m

es
by

w
or

ki
ng

in
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p
w

ith
pl

an
s

in
pl

ac
e

w
he

re
ne

ce
ss

ar
y

pr
ov

id
er

s

P
ro

m
ot

e
hi

gh
qu

al
ity

ca
re

fo
r

pe
op

le
w

ith
E

nd
of

lif
e

ca
re

st
ra

te
gy

w
ill

be
in

pl
ac

e
an

d
de

m
en

tia
at

th
e

en
d

of
lif

e
im

pl
em

en
te

d

Th
is

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g

st
ra

te
gy

w
ill

gi
ve

ris
e

to
a

de
ta

ile
d

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
pl

an
th

at
w

ill

cl
ea

rly
de

m
on

st
ra

te
ho

w
an

d
w

he
n

th
e

pr
io

rit
ie

s
w

ill
be

ac
hi

ev
ed

.R
el

ev
an

t

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

w
ill

be
in

vo
lv

ed
in

th
is

pr
oc

es
s.

Th
e

st
ra

te
gy

,a
pp

en
di

ce
s

an
d

a
su

m
m

ar
y

of
th

e
st

ra
te

gy
ar

e
av

ai
la

bl
e

at

w
w

w
.b

ra
ck

ne
ll-

fo
re

st
.g

ov
.u

k/
de

m
en

tia
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

gs
tr

at
eg

y2
00

9-
20

14
or

fro
m

th
e

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

Te
am

on
01

34
4

35
17

96
.

19
18

36



Copies of this booklet may be obtained in large print, Braille, on audio cassette
or in other languages. To obtain a copy in an alternative format please telephone
01344 352000.

©
 D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
P

rin
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
pr

il 
20

09

20

37



38

This page is intentionally left blank



BF
 D
em

en
tia
 LI
T a

cti
on
 pl
an
 – 
CO

MP
LE

TE
D 
PR

IO
RI
TIE

S. 
Ap

ril 
20
12
 

 
 

Br
ac
kn

ell
 Fo

res
t D

em
en
tia

 LI
T: 

Ac
tio

n p
lan

. C
OM

PL
ET

ED
 PR

IO
RI
TIE

S 
Int

ro
du

cti
on

 
 Na

tio
na

l c
on

tex
t 

Th
e N

ati
on
al 
De

me
nti
a S

tra
teg

y, 
Liv

ing
 W

ell
 w
ith
 D
em

en
tia
, w

as
 pu

bli
sh
ed
 in
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
09
 an

d i
s t
he
 fir
st 
ev
er 

na
tio
na
l s
tra

teg
y d

oc
um

en
t 

foc
us
sin

g s
ole

ly 
on
 D
em

en
tia
. T

he
 st
rat

eg
y e

nv
isio

ns
 pe

op
le 
wit

h d
em

en
tia
 an

d t
he
ir c

are
rs 
be
ing

 he
lpe

d t
o l
ive

 w
ell
 w
ith
 de

me
nti
a a

t a
ll 

sta
ge
s o

f th
eir
 co

nd
itio

n a
nd
/or

 w
he
rev

er 
the

y a
re 

wit
hin

 th
e h

ea
lth
 an

d s
oc
ial
 ca

re 
sy
ste

m.
 

 In 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
10
 th
e D

ep
art

me
nt 
of 
He

alt
h p

ub
lish

ed
 Q
ua
lity

 O
utc

om
es
 fo
r p

eo
ple

 w
ith
 de

me
nti
a: 
bu
ild
ing

 on
 th
e w

ork
 of
 th
e N

ati
on
al 

De
me

nti
a S

tra
teg

y**
. T

his
 pu

bli
ca
tio
n s

ug
ge
sts

 a 
rev

ise
d i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 pl
an
 fo
r h

ea
lth
 an

d s
oc
ial
 ca

re 
loc

ali
tie
s a

nd
 th
eir
 de

live
ry 
pa
rtn

ers
. 

Th
is 
inc

lud
es
 fo
ur 

pri
ori
ty 
ob
jec

tiv
es
: 

• 
go
od
 qu

ali
ty 
ea
rly
 di
ag
no
sis

 an
d i
nte

rve
nti
on
 fo
r a

ll 
• 

im
pro

ve
d q

ua
lity

 of
 ca

re 
in 
ge
ne
ral
 ho

sp
ita
ls 

• 
livi
ng
 w
ell
 w
ith
 de

me
nti
a i
n c

are
 ho

me
s  

• 
Re

du
ce
d u

se
 of
 an

tip
sy
ch
oti
c m

ed
ica

tio
n 

 In 
Ma

rch
 20

12
, th

e P
rim

e M
ini
ste

r’s
 C
ha
lle
ng
e o

n D
em

en
tia
 se

ts 
ou
t 3
 ke

y c
om

mi
tm
en
ts 

o
 
Dr
ivin

g i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 
in 
He

alt
h a

nd
 C
are

 
o
 
Cr
ea
tin

g d
em

en
tia

 fr
ien

dly
 co

mm
un

itie
s (

Th
e a

cti
on

 pl
an

 lo
ok

s a
t h

ow
 B
rac

kn
ell
 Fo

res
t c

an
 ac

hie
ve
 th

is)
 

o
 
Be

tte
r re

se
arc

h 
 Lo

ca
l c
on

tex
t 

Th
e B

rac
kn
ell
 Fo

res
t c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 st
rat

eg
y f
or 
pe
op
le 
wit

h d
em

en
tia
 20

09
 – 
20
14
 w
as
 de

ve
lop

ed
 in
 lig

ht 
of 
the

 N
ati
on
al 
De

me
nti
a S

tra
teg

y. 
 

Th
is 
loc

al 
str
ate

gy
 de

mo
ns
tra

tes
 ho

w 
we

 ar
e w

ork
ing

 to
wa

rds
 im

pro
vin

g p
eo
ple

’s 
ou
tco

me
s a

s i
de
nti
fie
d i
n ‘
Ou

r h
ea
lth
, o
ur 

ca
re,

 ou
r s
ay
’. T

he
 

he
ad
ing

s h
igh

lig
hte

d i
n b

lue
 re

lat
e t
o t
he
 ou

tco
me

s i
de
nti
fie
d i
n ‘
Ou

r h
ea
lth
, o
ur 

ca
re,

 ou
r s
ay
’ a
nd
 th
e B

rac
kn
ell
 Fo

res
t D

em
en
tia
 St

rat
eg
y. 

 Th
e B

rac
kn
ell
 D
em

en
tia
 Su

b L
IT 

ha
s b

ee
n m

ee
tin
g t
o i
mp

lem
en
t th

e a
cti
on
s i
n B

rac
kn
ell
 Fo

res
t’s
 de

me
nti
a s

tra
teg

y f
or 

thr
ee
 ye

ars
 an

d m
an
y 

sig
nif
ica

nt 
ou
tco

me
s h

av
e b

ee
n a

ch
iev

ed
. T

his
 re

-fre
sh
ed
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 ai
ms

 to
 de

tai
l w

ha
t h
as
 be

en
 ac

hie
ve
d s

o f
ar 

an
d w

ha
t a
cti
on
s a

re 
ne
ed
ed
 to
 m
ee
t th

e r
em

ain
ing

 ne
ed
s a

s i
de
nti
fie
d b

y t
he
 lo
ca
l s
tra

teg
y a

nd
 ta
ke
s i
nto

 ac
co
un
t th

e f
ou
r id

en
tifi
ed
 th
em

es
 fro

m 
the

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10
 pu

bli
ca
tio
n. 

 Th
os
e t
as
ks
 an

d p
rio
riti
es
 w
hic

h h
av
e b

ee
n a

dd
res

se
d c

an
 be

 fo
un
d o

n a
 se

pa
rat

e d
oc
um

en
t e
nti
tle
d “

De
me

nti
a L

IT 
ac
tio
ns
 Ap

ril 
20
12
” 

   

39



BF
 D
em

en
tia
 LI
T a

cti
on
 pl
an
 – 
CO

MP
LE

TE
D 
PR

IO
RI
TIE

S. 
Ap

ril 
20
12
 

 
 

 Br
ac
kn

ell
 Fo

res
t D

em
en
tia

 LI
T: 

Ac
tio

n p
lan

. C
OM

PL
ET

ED
 PR

IO
RI
TIE

S 
   1.1

Co
nti
nu
e t
o b

uil
d o

n s
uc
ce
ss
ful
 

su
pp
ort

 an
d s

erv
ice

s a
nd
 ch

an
ge
 an

d 
ad
ap
t s
up
po
rt a

va
ila
ble

, a
s a

pp
rop

ria
te,
 

to 
me

et 
pe
op
le’
s n

ee
ds
 

 

Ho
me

 Tr
ea
tm
en
t T

ea
m 
ful
ly 
op
era

tio
na
l. 

 
Co

mp
let
e 

  
 

1.2
 Ad

dre
ss
 ba

rrie
rs 
to 
ac
ce
ss
ing

 
su
pp
ort

: in
for

ma
tio
n; 
tim

ely
 su

pp
ort

; 
tra

ns
po
rt a

nd
 fin

an
ce
s 

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 3,
4 

No
 w
ait
ing

 lis
t 

 Ho
me

 Tr
ea
tm
en
t T

ea
m 
in 
pla

ce
 

 De
me

nti
a A

dv
iso

r is
 a 
su
bs
tan

tiv
e p

os
t –
 pe

op
le 
ab
le 
to 

ac
ce
ss
 ac

cu
rat

e i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 ea

sily
 an

d e
arl
y o

n. 
 Du

ty 
Of
fic
er 

in 
pla

ce
 

 
co
mp

let
e 

 

1.4
 C
on
tin
ue
 to
 in
ve
st 
in 
sta

ff 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d t
rai
nin

g, 
inc

lud
ing

 
sp
ec
ial
ist
 de

me
nti
a t
rai
nin

g 
ND

S o
bje

cti
ve
 1,
13
 

As
 pe

r ro
uti
ne
 pr

ac
tic
e: 
All
 C
MH

T (
OA

) s
taf
f u
nd
ert

ak
e 

De
me

nti
a t
rai
nin

g. 
 

Co
mp

let
e 

 

Pr
ior

ity
 id

en
tifi

ed
 in

 B
F s

tra
teg

y 
 

 
Ou

tco
me

 
Ac

tio
ns

 
Ta
rg
et 

Da
te 

Le
ad

 
1. 
Im
pro

vin
g h

ea
lth
 an

d e
mo

tio
na
l w

ell
be
ing

 
  1.3

 U
se
 ex

ist
ing

 re
so
urc

es
 in
 cr
ea
tiv
e 

wa
ys
 to
 m
ee
t p
eo
ple

’s 
ne
ed
s a

nd
 

inc
rea

se
 da

y a
cti
vit
y h

ou
rs 

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 6 

Pe
rso

na
lisa

tio
n/ 
Pe

rso
na
l b
ud
ge
ts 

Dir
ec
t P

ay
me

nts
 ac

ce
ss
ibl
e t
o o

lde
r a

du
lts
. 

 Tim
eb
an
k u

p a
nd
 ru

nn
ing

 
He

ath
lan

ds
 – 
do
ub
led

 da
y a

cti
vit
y h

ou
rs.
 

 
Co

mp
let
e 

 

1.5
 W

ork
 m
ore

 cl
os
ely

 w
ith
 th
e N

HS
 to
 

fun
d a

nd
 pr

ov
ide

 su
pp
ort
 fo
r p

eo
ple

 
wit

h d
em

en
tia
 an

d t
he
ir c

are
rs 

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 14

 

CM
HT

 (O
A)
 is
 an

 in
teg

rat
ed
 te
am

 
 De

me
nti
a A

dv
iso

r p
os
t 

 
Co

mp
let
e 

 

40



BF
 D
em

en
tia
 LI
T a

cti
on
 pl
an
 – 
CO

MP
LE

TE
D 
PR

IO
RI
TIE

S. 
Ap

ril 
20
12
 

 
 

1.6
.W

ork
 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 to
wa

rds
 go

od
 

qu
ali
ty 
ea
rly
 di
ag
no
sis

 an
d i
nte

rve
nti
on
  

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 2 

De
me

nti
a A

dv
iso

r in
 pl
ac
e o

ffe
rin
g a

dv
ice

 an
d s

up
po
rt 

so
on
 af
ter

 di
ag
no
sis

. 
 Th

is 
is 
hig

h o
n t
he
 N
ex
t G

en
era

tio
n C

are
 ag

en
da
. 

 
Co

mp
let
e 

 

1.7
 Pr

ov
ide

 ac
ce
ss
ibl
e s

up
po
rt f

or 
pe
op
le 
wit

h d
em

en
tia
 to
 en

ab
le 
the

m 
to 

sta
y i
n t
he
ir o

wn
 ho

me
s f
or 

lon
ge
r a

nd
 

to 
he
lp 
wit

h t
im
ely

 di
sc
ha
rge

 fro
m 

ho
sp
ita
l (i
nte

rm
ed
iat
e c

are
/re

-ab
lem

en
t) 

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 6,
9 

De
me

nti
a A

dv
iso

r in
 po

st 
 De

me
nti
a H

om
e T

rea
tm
en
t T

ea
m 
es
tab

lish
ed
 

 Co
mm

un
ity
 Su

pp
ort

 an
d W

ell
be
ing

 (D
em

en
tia
) T

ea
m 

es
tab

lish
ed
 

 Te
lec

are
 he

lps
 pe

op
le 
to 
rem

ain
 in
 th
eir
 ow

n h
om

es
 fo
r 

lon
ge
r. 

 

   
Co

mp
let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

    

2.2
 Su

pp
ort
 cu

rre
nt 
ho
me

 ca
re 

pro
vid

ers
 to
 in
cre

as
e s

taf
f s
kill

s a
nd
 

aw
are

ne
ss
 of
 de

me
nti
a 

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 1,
6,1

3 

De
me

nti
a t
rai
nin

g i
s a

va
ila
ble

 to
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
thr

ou
gh
 th
e 

co
un
cil.

 Th
is 
is 
no
 lo
ng
er 

a f
ree

 pr
ov
isio

n. 
 Ex
ten

de
d h

an
do
ve
r is

 pa
rt o

f c
om

mo
n p

rac
tic
e w

he
n 

pe
op
le 
sto

p r
ec
eiv

ing
 su

pp
ort

 fro
m 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Su

pp
ort

 
an
d W

ell
be
ing

 (D
em

en
tia
) T

ea
m 
an
d s

tar
t re

ce
ivin

g 
su
pp
ort

 fro
m 
an
 ag

en
cy
. 

 La
dy
ba
nk
 an

d H
ea
thl
an
ds
 ha

ve
 pu

rch
as
ed
 sp

ec
ial
ist
 

de
me

nti
a t
rai
nin

g a
nd
 th
is 
is 
ma

de
 av

ail
ab
le 
to 

pro
vid

ers
 w
ho
 ar

e a
sk
ed
 to
 co

ve
r th

e c
os
t o
f th

e 
wo

rkb
oo
ks
 (£

2 e
ac
h).

 C
om

ple
tio
n o

f th
is 
tra

ini
ng
 is
 

wo
rth

 cr
ed
it t
ow

ard
s a

 di
plo

ma
. 

 

 
 

 

2. 
Im
pro

vin
g q

ua
lity

 of
 lif
e 

2.1
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

 sp
ec
ial
ist
 de

me
nti
a 

ho
me

 ca
re 

pro
vid

er 
se
rvi
ce
s 

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 6 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Su

pp
ort

 an
d W

ell
be
ing

 Te
am

 – 
De

me
nti
a. 

Te
am

 fu
lly 

op
era

tio
na
l. 

  

 
Co

mp
let
e 

 

2.3
 R
ec
rui
t s
taf
f to

 in
cre

as
e t
he
 

ca
pa
cit
y o

f B
F i
n-h

ou
se
 sp

ec
ial
ist
 ho

me
 
Re

cru
ite
d 3

 ne
w 
sta

ff s
inc

e O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 

 
 

Co
mp

let
e 

 

41



BF
 D
em

en
tia
 LI
T a

cti
on
 pl
an
 – 
CO

MP
LE

TE
D 
PR

IO
RI
TIE

S. 
Ap

ril 
20
12
 

 
 

2.5
 En

ab
le 
ne
w 
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r 

pro
vis

ion
 of
 a 
ran

ge
 of
 fle

xib
le 
res

pit
e 

ca
re 

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 6 

Ca
rer

s a
ble

 to
 ac

ce
ss
 re

sp
ite
 dr

op
 in
 se

rvi
ce
  

  Ca
rer

s a
ble

 to
 us

e p
ers

on
al 
bu
dg
ets

 to
 ac

ce
ss
 id
en
tifi
ed
 

res
pit
e n

ee
d. 

 Pr
inc

es
s R

oy
al 
Tru

st 
Ca

rer
’s 
Se

rvi
ce
 in
 pl
ac
e 

6 m
on
th 
pil
ot 
@
 

He
ath

lan
ds
 

  

Co
mp

let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

 

2.6
 In
cre

as
e a

wa
ren

es
s f
or 

ca
rer

s o
f 

wh
o t
o c

on
tac

t in
 an

 ou
t-o
f-h

ou
rs 

em
erg

en
cy
  

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 3,
4 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 gi
ve
n o

n c
are

 pl
an
 

 An
sw

er 
ph
on
e m

es
sa
ge
 gi
ve
s E

me
rge

nc
y D

uty
 Te

am
 

nu
mb

er 

 
Co

mp
let
e 

 

2.8
 Pr

ov
ide

 m
ore

 op
tio
ns
 of
 sp

ec
ial
ist
 

de
me

nti
a r

es
ide

nti
al 
ca
re.

 
He

ath
lan

ds
 R
es
ide

nti
al 
Ho

me
 re

gis
ter

ed
 an

d i
n u

se
 fo
r 

De
me

nti
a C

are
. 

 
    

Co
mp

let
e 

   

 

2.9
 Im

pro
ve
 qu

ali
ty 
of 
ge
ne
ral
 ho

sp
ita
l 

ca
re 

for
 pe

op
le 
wit

h d
em

en
tia
  

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 1,
8 

 

Lin
ke
d t
o N

ex
t G

en
era

tio
n C

are
  

 Be
rks

 Ea
st 
– M

en
tal
 he

alt
h l
iai
so
n s

erv
ice

 (2
 sp

ec
ial
ist
 

nu
rse

s) 
in 
pla

ce
 at
 H
ea
the

rw
oo
d a

nd
 W

rex
ha
m 
pa
rk.
  

 Be
rks

 W
es
t –
 M
en
tal
 he

alt
h l
iai
so
n s

erv
ice

 at
 R
oy
al 

Be
rks

 

      

  Co
mp

let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

 

3.1
 C
on
tin
ue
 to
 su

pp
ort

 an
d v

alu
e 

Ca
rer

s m
em

be
rs 
of 
the

 Lo
ca
l Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n T

ea
m,
 

 
Co

mp
let
e 

 

ca
re 

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 6 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Su

pp
ort

 an
d W

ell
be
ing

 Te
am

 (D
em

en
tia
) u

p 
an
d r

un
nin

g. 
2.4

 Im
pro

ve
 da

y o
pti
on
s f
or 

pe
op
le 
wit

h 
de
me

nti
a 

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 6 

De
me

nti
a A

dv
iso

r ‘u
se
r-le

d’ 
gro

up
. 

 W
oo
dla

nd
s c

los
ed
. 

 All
 pe

op
le 
wit

h d
em

en
tia
 w
ill h

av
e a

 pe
rso

na
l b
ud
ge
t –
 

thi
s c

an
 be

 m
an
ag
ed
 on

 th
eir
 be

ha
lf i
f n
ec
es
sa
ry.
 

 Th
e r

ev
am

p a
t H

ea
thl
an
ds
 D
ay
 C
en
tre

 ha
s d

ou
ble

d 
the

 am
ou
nt 
of 
 da

y c
are

 pl
ac
es
 av

ail
ab
le 

 
Co

mp
let
e 

 

3. 
Ma

kin
g a

 po
sit
ive

 co
ntr

ibu
tio
n 

42



BF
 D
em

en
tia
 LI
T a

cti
on
 pl
an
 – 
CO

MP
LE

TE
D 
PR

IO
RI
TIE

S. 
Ap

ril 
20
12
 

 
 

ca
rer

s a
nd
 th
eir
 fa
mi
lie
s a

nd
 in
vo
lve

 
ca
rer

s a
nd
 pe

op
le 
us
ing

 se
rvi
ce
s i
n t
he
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
ne
w 
ini
tia
tiv
es
  

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 7 

De
me

nti
a A

dv
iso

r s
ub
-lit
 gr

ou
p. 

 Ca
rer

’s 
ab
le 
to 
ac
ce
ss
 ‘U

nd
ers

tan
din

g D
em

en
tia
’ 

co
urs

es
. 

 Ca
rer

s i
ns
tru

me
nta

l in
 ru

nn
ing

 of
 U
se
r L

ed
 G
rou

p. 
 Ca

rer
 aw

are
, e
-le
arn

ing
 to
ol 
av
ail
ab
le.
 

 Ca
rer

’s 
dro

p i
n r

es
pit
e s

erv
ice

 av
ail
ab
le 
at 
He

ath
lan

ds
. 

3.2
 C
on
tin
ue
 to
 su

pp
ort

 an
d v

alu
e t
he
 

wo
rk 
of 
the

 vo
lun

tar
y s

ec
tor

; lo
ok
ing

 at
 

ne
w 
wa

ys
 to
 w
ork

 w
ith
 th
e v

olu
nta

ry 
se
cto

r to
 im

pro
ve
 pe

op
le’
s l
ive

s 
 

Vo
lun

tar
y s

ec
tor

 re
pre

se
nta

tiv
es
 w
ith
in 
Lo
ca
l 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n T

ea
m.
 

 Te
am

 su
pp
ort
s A

lzh
eim

er’
s C

afé
 an

d o
the

r v
olu

nta
ry 

ca
rer

’s 
gro

up
s. 

 
Co

mp
let
e 

 

3.4
 Im

ple
me

nt 
a s

ys
tem

 of
 in
vo
lvin

g 
ca
rer

s a
nd
 pe

op
le 
wit

h d
em

en
tia
, a
s 

ap
pro

pri
ate

, in
 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t, 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 an

d e
va
lua

tio
n o

f d
em

en
tia
 

su
pp
ort

 an
d s

erv
ice

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e 

tra
ns
for

mi
ng
 ad

ult
 so

cia
l c
are

 ag
en
da
 

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 5,
7 

Te
rm

s o
f R

efe
ren

ce
 de

tai
l th

e m
em

be
rsh

ip 
of 
ca
rer

s 
an
d p

eo
ple

 w
ith
 de

me
nti
a w

ith
in 
the

 Lo
ca
l 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n T

ea
m.
 

 Pa
tie
nt 
ex
pe
rie
nc
e t
rac

ke
r. 

 Pe
op
le 
wh

o a
cc
es
s s

erv
ice

s a
nd
 th
eir
 ca

rer
’s 
ev
alu

ati
ng
 

De
me

nti
a A

dv
iso

r s
erv

ice
. 

 
Co

mp
let
e 

 

4. 
Inc

rea
sin

g c
ho
ice

 an
d c

on
tro

l 
4.1

 W
ork

 w
ith
 ca

rer
s, 
pro

vid
ers

 an
d o

ur 
pa
rtn

ers
 to
 im

ple
me

nt 
su
pp
ort

ed
 se

lf 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
an
d i
nd
ivid

ua
lise

d b
ud
ge
ts 

for
 pe

op
le 
wit

h d
em

en
tia
 an

d t
he
ir 

ca
rer

s. 

All
 ne

w 
ref

err
als

 an
d p

eo
ple

 at
 po

int
 of
 re

vie
w 
co
mp

let
e 

an
 SS

AQ
, g
ivin

g t
he
m 
ac
ce
ss
 to
 pe

rso
na
l b
ud
ge
ts 

 
 

Co
mp

let
e 

 

4.3
 In
cre

as
ed
 pr

ov
isio

n o
f T

ele
ca
re 

an
d 

as
sis

tiv
e t
ec
hn
olo

gie
s t
o e

na
ble

 pe
op
le 

wit
h d

em
en
tia
 to
 st
ay
 at
 ho

me
 

Te
lec

are
 ch

am
pio

n i
n p

lac
e w

ith
in 
CM

HT
 (O

A)
. 

Te
lec

are
 le
ad
 in
 O
P L

TC
 te
am

 
Te

lec
are

 ex
plo

red
 as

 an
 op

tio
n w

he
n s

up
po
rtin

g p
eo
ple

 
wit

h a
rra

ng
ing

 th
eir
 su

pp
ort

 th
rou

gh
 th
eir
 pe

rso
na
l 

bu
dg
et.
 

 
Co

mp
let
e 

 

5. 
Fre

ed
om

 fro
m 
dis

cri
mi
na
tio
n o

r h
arr

as
sm

en
t 

43



BF
 D
em

en
tia
 LI
T a

cti
on
 pl
an
 – 
CO

MP
LE

TE
D 
PR

IO
RI
TIE

S. 
Ap

ril 
20
12
 

 
 

5.1
 In
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
, w

ork
 to
wa

rds
 te
sts

 
for

 de
me

nti
a t
ha
t a
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 fo
r 

pe
op
le 
fro

m 
all
 ba

ck
gro

un
ds
 

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 2 

Va
rie
ty 
of 
tes

t fo
rm

ats
 in
 us

e –
 no

 se
rvi
ce
 de

fic
it 

rep
ort

ed
 

 
 

Co
mp

let
e 

 

5.6
 D
ev
elo

p a
 st
rat

eg
ic 
ap
pro

ac
h t
o 

inc
lus

ion
 an

d e
qu
ali
ty 
in 
de
me

nti
a c

are
, 

inc
lud

ing
 ad

dre
ss
ing

 th
e n

ee
ds
 of
 

LG
BT

 pe
op
le 

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 2 

Me
t th

rou
gh
 ho

list
ic 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
 

Co
mp

let
e 

 

5.7
 Sp

ec
ial
ist
 su

pp
ort

 to
 co

nti
nu
e t
o b

e 
av
ail
ab
le 
to 
pe
op
le 
wit

h 
mu

ltip
le/
co
mp

lex
 di
ag
no
se
s o

r s
en
so
ry 

los
s a

nd
 de

me
nti
a 

  Av
ail
ab
le 
thr

ou
gh
 C
MH

T (
OA

) a
nd
 Se

ns
ory

 N
ee
ds
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

 
  Co

mp
let
e 

     
5.8

 En
su
re 

de
me

nti
a c

are
 is
 cu

ltu
ral
ly 

se
ns
itiv

e 
ND

S o
bje

cti
ve
 2 

Me
t th

rou
gh
 ho

list
ic 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
 

Co
mp

let
e 

 

6.1
 Be

 aw
are

 of
 th
e f
ina

nc
ial
 ha

rds
hip

s 
fam

ilie
s c

an
 fa
ce
 an

d p
rom

ote
 be

ne
fits

 
an
d f
ina

nc
ial
 ad

vis
ory

 se
rvi
ce
s 

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 3,
4 

Ho
list

ic 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
by
 al
l o
f te

am
 gi
ve
s t
his

 
inf
orm

ati
on
. 

 De
me

nti
a A

dv
iso

r g
ive

s t
his

 in
for

ma
tio
n t
o n

ew
ly 

dia
gn
os
ed
. 

 Fin
an
cia

l te
am

 al
so
 ad

vis
es
 

 Pu
bli
ca
tio
n a

va
ila
ble

 fo
r s
elf
 fu
nd
ers

 an
d t
he
ir f
am

ilie
s 

co
ns
ide

rin
g r

es
ide

nti
al 
ca
re 

– f
ina

nc
ial
 ad

vic
e r

e h
ow

 to
 

pa
y f
or 
thi
s. 

        Es
tab

lish
 w
ork

ing
 

gro
up
 

 Pr
od
uc
e 

pu
bli
ca
tio
n 

Co
mp

let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

            

5.4
 In
ve
sti
ga
te 
the

 op
tio
ns
 fo
r h

av
ing

 a 
De

me
nti
a A

dv
iso

r ro
le 

De
me

nti
a A

dv
iso

r in
 po

st 
 

Co
mp

let
e 

 

6 E
co
no
mi
c w

ell
be
ing

 

6.2
 H
elp

 pe
op
le 
to 
fin
d o

ut 
dif
fer

en
t 

wa
ys
 th
at 
so
cia

l c
are

 an
d h

ou
sin

g 
Ho

list
ic 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
by
 al
l o
f te

am
 gi
ve
s t
his

 
inf
orm

ati
on
. 

 
Co

mp
let
e 

 

44



BF
 D
em

en
tia
 LI
T a

cti
on
 pl
an
 – 
CO

MP
LE

TE
D 
PR

IO
RI
TIE

S. 
Ap

ril 
20
12
 

 
 

7.4
 Pr

om
ote

 hi
gh
 qu

ali
ty 
ca
re 

for
 pe

op
le 

wit
h d

em
en
tia
 at
 th
e e

nd
 of
 lif
e 

ND
S O

bje
cti

ve
 12

 
Ca

re 
ho
me

 st
aff
, D

ist
ric
t N

urs
es
 an

d C
R&

R 
sta

ff a
tte
nd
 

En
d o

f L
ife
 tra

ini
ng
 

 
Co

mp
let
e 

 

 ** 
Qu

ali
ty 
ou
tco

me
s f
or 

pe
op
le 
wit

h d
em

en
tia
: b
uil
din

g o
n t
he
 w
ork

 of
 th
e N

ati
on
al 
De

me
nti
a S

tra
teg

y  
Fir

st 
pu
bli
sh
ed
: S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
0 

1. 
Go

od
 q
ua

lity
 ea

rly
 d
iag

no
sis

 an
d 
int

erv
en

tio
n 
for

 al
l -
 T
wo

 th
ird
s o

f p
eo
ple

 w
ith
 de

me
nti
a n

ev
er 

rec
eiv

e a
 di
ag
no
sis

; th
e U

K 
is 
in 
the

 
bo
tto
m 
thi
rd 

of 
co
un
trie

s i
n E

uro
pe
 fo
r d

iag
no
sis

 an
d t
rea

tm
en
t o
f p
eo
ple

 w
ith
 de

me
nti
a; 
on
ly 
a t
hir
d o

f G
Ps

 fe
el 
the

y h
av
e a

de
qu
ate

 tra
ini
ng
 in
 

dia
gn
os
is 
of 
de
me

nti
a. 
 

2. 
Im

pr
ov
ed

 q
ua

lity
 o
f c

are
 in

 g
en

era
l h

os
pit

als
 - 
40
% 

of 
pe
op
le 

in 
ho
sp
ita
l h

av
e d

em
en
tia
; th

e e
xc
es
s c

os
t is

 es
tim

ate
d t

o b
e £

6m
 pe

r 
an
nu
m 
in 
the

 av
era

ge
 G
en
era

l H
os
pit
al;
 co

-m
orb

idi
ty 
wit

h g
en
era

l m
ed
ica

l c
on
dit
ion

s i
s h

igh
, p
eo
ple

 w
ith
 de

me
nti
a s

tay
 lo
ng
er 

in 
ho
sp
ita
l.  

3. 
Liv

ing
 w
ell
 w
ith

 d
em

en
tia

 in
 ca

re 
ho

me
s -

 T
wo

 th
ird
s o

f p
eo
ple

 in
 ca

re 
ho
me

s h
av
e d

em
en
tia
; d

ep
en
de
nc
y i
s i
nc
rea

sin
g; 

ov
er 

ha
lf a

re 
po
orl
y o

cc
up
ied

; b
eh
av
iou

ral
 di
stu

rba
nc
es
 ar

e h
igh

ly 
pre

va
len

t a
nd
 ar

e o
fte
n t
rea

ted
 w
ith
 an

tip
sy
ch
oti
c d

rug
s. 
 

4. 
Re

du
ce
d u

se
 of

 an
tip

sy
ch

oti
c m

ed
ica

tio
n -

 Th
ere

 ar
e a

n e
sti
ma

ted
 18

0,0
00
 pe

op
le 
wit

h d
em

en
tia
 on

 an
tip
sy
ch
oti
c d

rug
s. 
In 
on
ly 
ab
ou
t 

on
e t
hir
d o

f th
es
e c

as
es
 ar

e t
he
 dr

ug
s h

av
ing

 a 
be
ne
fic
ial
 ef
fec

t a
nd
 th
ere

 ar
e 1

80
0 e

xc
es
s d

ea
ths

 pe
r y
ea
r a

s a
 re

su
lt o

f th
eir
 pr

es
cri
pti
on
. 

 su
pp
ort

 ca
n b

e f
un
de
d 

ND
S o

bje
cti

ve
 3,
4,1

0 
 De

me
nti
a A

dv
iso

r g
ive

s t
his

 in
for

ma
tio
n t
o n

ew
ly 

dia
gn
os
ed
. 

 Fin
an
cia

l te
am

 al
so
 ad

vis
es
. 

7. 
Ma

int
ain

ing
 pe

rso
na
l d
ign

ity
 an

d r
es
pe
ct 

7.2
 En

co
ura

ge
 al
l a
ll p

rov
ide

rs 
of 

de
me

nti
a s

up
po
rt t

o a
cc
es
s 

sa
feg

ua
rdi
ng
 tra

ini
ng
 an

d w
e w

ill 
req

uir
e a

ll p
rov

ide
rs 
we

 co
ntr

ac
t w

ith
 to
 

sig
n u

p t
o t
he
 ad

ult
 sa

feg
ua
rdi
ng
 po

licy
 

an
d a

cc
es
s s

afe
gu
ard

ing
 tra

ini
ng
. 

Th
is 
is 
no
w 
a c

on
tra

ctu
al 
req

uir
em

en
t o
f a
ll p

rov
ide

rs.
 

 
Co

mp
let
e 

 

7.3
 W

ork
 to
 im

pro
ve
 de

me
nti
a c

are
 in
 

ca
re 

ho
me

s b
y w

ork
ing

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

wit
h p

rov
ide

rs 
ND

S o
bje

cti
ve
 1,
11
,13

 

Re
gu
lar
 m
on
ito
rin
g o

f in
div

idu
al’
s w

ell
be
ing

 w
hil
st 
in 
a 

ca
re 

ho
me

 by
 C
PN

s a
nd
 So

cia
l W

ork
ers

. 
 Ca

re 
ho
me

s p
ho
ne
 du

ty 
tea

m 
for

 ad
vic

e o
n d

em
en
tia
 

iss
ue
s. 

 
Co

mp
let
e 

 

45



46

This page is intentionally left blank



Br
ac
kn
ell
 Fo

res
t D

em
en
tia
 St

rat
eg
y

Th
e s

tor
y s

o f
ar!

47



Wh
at 

we
 ha

ve
 ac

hie
ve
d

Im
pr
ov

e a
cc
es
s t

o p
ers

on
ali
se
d s

up
po

rt 
in 

the
 co

mm
un

ity
 w
he

re
ap

pr
op

ria
te.

•
Ho

list
ic 
as
se
ss
me

nt
•

Ho
me

 Tr
ea
tm
en
t T

ea
m

•
Co

mm
un
ity
 Su

pp
ort

 an
d W

ell
be
ing

 (D
em

en
tia
) T

ea
m

•
De

me
nti
a A

dv
iso

r
•

Du
ty 
Of
fic
er

•
Pe

rso
na
lisa

tio
n

•
He

alt
hla

nd
sr
ev
am

p =
  D

ou
ble

d t
he
 am

ou
nt 
of 
da
y c

en
tre

 pl
ac
es

•
Wo

od
lan

ds
 cl
os
ed

•
Th

e F
org

ett
ers

 
•

Te
lec

are

48



Wh
at 

we
 ha

ve
 ac

hie
ve
d

Sk
ille

d a
nd

 ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 su

pp
or
t in

 al
l s
ett

ing
s

•
All
 C
MH

T (
OA

) s
taf
f u
nd
ert

ak
e s

pe
cia

list
 D
em

en
tia
 tra

ini
ng

•
Ex

ten
de
d h

an
do
ve
r fr

om
 C
om

mu
nit
y S

up
po
rt a

nd
 W

ell
be
ing

 
(D
em

en
tia
) T

ea
m 
to 
ag
en
cie

s
•

Sp
ec
ial
ist
 D
em

en
tia
 tra

ini
ng
 av

ail
ab
le 
be
ing

 ro
lle
d o

ut 
int
ern

all
y 

(C
ou
nc
il a

nd
 Tr

us
t)

•
He

ath
lan

ds
no
w 
reg

ist
ere

d a
s D

em
en
tia
 C
are

 H
om

e

49



Wh
at 

we
 ha

ve
 ac

hie
ve
d

Su
pp

or
t fo

r c
are

rs

•
Ca

rer
s’
dro

p i
n r

es
pit
e a

t H
ea
thl
an
ds

•
Pe

rso
na
l b
ud
ge
ts 
for

 ca
rer

s
•

Th
e F

org
ett
ers

•
‘Ca

rer
 aw

are
’e
-to

ol 
av
ail
ab
le

•
‘Un

de
rst
an
din

g D
em

en
tia
’c
ou
rse

•
Ca

rer
s m

em
be
rs 
of 
LIT

 
•

Ca
rer

s k
ey
 to
 D
em

en
tia
 Ad

vis
or 

ev
alu

ati
on

50



Wh
at 

we
 ha

ve
 ac

hie
ve
d

Su
pp

or
t to

 ac
ce
ss
 fin

an
cia

l a
dv

ice

•
De

me
nti
a A

dv
iso

r
•

Fin
an
cia

l T
ea
m

•
‘Fu

nd
ing

 yo
ur 

ow
n c

are
’b
oo
kle

t

51



Wh
at 

we
 ar

e s
till

 w
or
kin

g o
n

•
Sp

ec
ial
ist
 de

me
nti
a t
rai
nin

g a
va
ila
ble

 fo
r p

rov
ide

rs
•

3 s
tep

 do
wn

 be
ds
 w
ith
in 
Ea

st 
Be

rks
hir
e

•
Ex

tra
 sh

elt
ere

d h
ou
sin

g (
tar

ge
t 2
01
4)

•
Pe

rm
an
en
t fu

nd
ing

 of
 m
en
tal
 he

alt
h l
iai
so
n s

erv
ice

 at
 H
ea
the

rw
oo
d

an
d W

ex
ha
m
Pa

rk
•

Fri
ml
ey
 –
sp
ec
ial
ist
 de

me
nti
a w

ard
 fo
r p

eo
ple

 re
ce
ivin

g g
en
era

l 
tre

atm
en
t

•
Inc

rea
se
 nu

mb
er 

of 
vo
lun

tee
rs 
at 
He

alt
hla

nd
s

•
On

e d
ay
 fo
r y
ou
ng
er 

pe
op
le 
wit

h d
em

en
tia
 at
 H
ea
lth
lan

ds
•

Ca
re 

ho
me

 an
d c

om
mu

nit
y s

taf
f to

 co
mp

let
e E

nd
 of
 Li
fe 
tra

ini
ng

•
All
 ag

en
cie

s c
on
tra

ctu
al 
ob
lig
ati
on
 to
 tra

in 
sta

ff i
n d

em
en
tia
 

aw
are

ne
ss
 an

d a
du
lt s

afe
gu
ard

ing

52



Pr
ior

itie
s f

or
 20

12
 –
20
14
?

•
Im
pro

ve
 st
ati
sti
ca
l re

co
rdi
ng
 an

d j
oin

t w
ork

ing
•

Ro
ll o

ut 
De

me
nti
a T

rai
nin

g t
o o

the
r te

am
s

•
Be

co
me

 a 
rec

og
nis

ed
 ‘D

em
en
tia
 Fr

ien
dly

 C
om

mu
nit
y’

•
Inc

rea
se
 nu

mb
er 

of 
pe
op
le 
wit

h d
em

en
tia
 an

d c
are

rs 
wit

h a
 pe

rso
na
l 

bu
dg
et

•
De

ve
lop

 th
e m

ark
et 
to 
en
co
ura

ge
 us

e o
f p
ers

on
al 
bu
dg
ets

•
De

me
nti
a r

es
ou
rce

s
•

Re
du
ce
 us

e o
f a
nti
ps
yc
ho
tic
 m
ed
ica

tio
n

•
De

ve
lop

 D
em

en
tia
 Ad

vis
or 

we
bs
ite

•
An

d…
.?

53



54

This page is intentionally left blank



Unrestricted 

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
14 JUNE 2012 

 
 

QUALITY ACCOUNTS 
Assistant Chief Executive 

 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report invites the Health Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Panel to note the letters 

sent to five NHS Trusts on their Quality Accounts for 2011-12, and the three 
responses received. 

 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 That the Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel notes the letters sent to five NHS 

Trusts on their quality accounts for 2011-12, and the responses received. 
 
 
3 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 All providers of NHS healthcare services in England, whether they are NHS 

bodies, private or third sector organisations must publish an annual Quality 
Account. Quality Accounts are annual reports to the public from providers of NHS 
healthcare services about the quality of services they provide. The primary 
purpose of Quality Accounts is to encourage boards and leaders of healthcare 
organisations to assess quality across all of the healthcare services they offer, 
and encourage them to engage in the wider processes of continuous quality 
improvement. 

 
3.2 Quality Accounts are published on the NHS Choices website and providers also 

have a duty to display a notice at their premises with information on how to obtain 
the latest Quality Account; and to provide hard copies on request.  

 
3.3 Healthcare providers publishing Quality Accounts have a legal duty to send their 

Quality Account to the O&S Committee (or Panel) in the local authority area in 
which the provider has its registered office, inviting comments on the report from 
O&S prior to publication. This gives O&S the opportunity to review the information 
contained in the report and provide a statement on their view of what is reported. 
Providers are legally obliged to publish this statement (of less than 1000 words) 
as part of their Quality Account. 

  
3.4 A Working Group of the Health O&S Panel considered the Quality Accounts of the 

NHS Trusts servicing Bracknell Forest Residents and decided to send the letters 
attached at Appendices 1-5.   Three NHS Trusts responded, reproduced at Appendix 
6. 

 
 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND 
OTHER OFFICERS/ EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT/ STRATEGIC RISK 
MANAGEMENT ISSUES / OTHER OFFICERS/ CONSULTATION – Not applicable 

Agenda Item 10

55



Unrestricted 

 
Background Papers 
 
‘Quality Accounts: a guide for Overview and Scrutiny Committees’ – Department of Health, 
2011 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Richard Beaumont – 01344 352283 
e-mail: richard.beaumont@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 

56



Unrestricted 

Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Julian Emms 
Acting Chief Executive Officer 
Berkshire Healthcare NHS Trust 
Fitzwilliam House 
(2nd/3rd Floors) 
Skimped Hill Lane 
Bracknell 
RG12 1LD 
 
 
By email to: 
Julian.Emms@berkshire.nhs.uk 
 
Date: 24/04/2012 
 
 
 
Dear Julian, 

 
TRUST’S QUALITY ACCOUNT 2011/12  
 
Thank you for inviting the views of Bracknell Forest Council’s Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel on the Trust’s Quality Account for 2011/12. 
 
The Panel has the following comments: 
 

1. We would like to see more about how the Trust proposes to respond to the higher 
incidence of mental health problems, as highlighted in the recent Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment. 

2. Given the recent consultation process and changes to concentrate in-patient care at 
Prospect Park in Reading we would have thought that this merited inclusion in the 
Trust’s priorities for improvement in the coming year. Also, there should be a clear 
way forward on the mitigation of additional travel costs for patients and their visitors. 

3. In the draft report at 2.1.3a there is a significantly lower offer rate at Bracknell. This 
15% below target has not been commented on and we would be interested in the 
reasons for it. 

4. Working with the Clinical Commissioning Groups is increasingly important.  The 
priority focuses on initiatives to better meet the mental health needs of people with 
long term physical health conditions such as respiratory disease, heart disease and 
musculoskeletal problems. It also seeks to enhance the physical health care of 

57



Unrestricted 

people with mental health problems. It is vital to work effectively with GPs to better 
meet these objectives. 

5. The Panel would welcome the Trust providing more facilities for addressing Autism 
needs. 

6. The Panel is concerned that Berkshire Healthcare Foundation Trust’s Information 
Governance Assessment Report overall score for 2011/12 was 68% and was graded 
amber (unsatisfactory).  

 
 
 
With best wishes, 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Tony Virgo 
Chairman, Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 
Copies to: Councillor Birch; Director of Adult Social Care, Health & Housing 
Email Copy to Amanda.Mollett@berkshire.nhs.uk 
 
 
 
 

 
 

58



Unrestricted 

Appendix 2 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Andrew Morris 
Chief Executive 
Frimley Park Hospital NHS Trust 
Portsmouth Road  
Frimley  
Surrey  
GU16 7UJ 
 
By email to: 
andrew.morris@fph-tr.nhs.uk 
 
Date: 24/04/2012 
 
 
Dear Andrew, 

 
TRUST’S QUALITY ACCOUNT 2011/12  
 
Bracknell Forest Council’s Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel has the following views on 
the Trust’s Quality Account for 2011/12: 
 
 

1. We were delighted to hear of the developments and standards of the Trust when the 
Panel was addressed recently by CEO Andrew Morris. The Panel will shortly be taken 
on a tour around the hospital and see the new A and E suite being constructed. 

2. The Strategic Health Authority should endeavour to spread the best practice from this 
highly performing Hospital Trust to other NHS establishments across the South of 
England. 

3. Working with the Clinical Commissioning Groups is increasingly important, and we 
would welcome more information on how the Trust will embrace that change.   

 
 
With best wishes, 
 
 
 
Councillor Tony Virgo 
Chairman, Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 
Copies to: Councillor Birch; Director of Adult Social Care, Health & Housing 
Email Copy to James.Taylor@fph-tr.nhs.uk 

59



Unrestricted 

Appendix 3 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Philippa Slinger 
Chief Executive 
Heatherwood & Wexham Park NHS Trust 
Wexham Street 
Slough 
Berkshire 
SL2 4HL 
 
By email to: 
Philippa.slinger@HWP-tr.nhs.uk 
 
Date: 23/04/2012 
 
 
 
Dear Philippa, 
 

 
TRUST’S QUALITY ACCOUNT 2011/12  
 
Thank you for inviting the views of Bracknell Forest Council’s Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel on the Trust’s Quality Account for 2011/12. 
 
The Panel has the following comments: 
 

1. We remained concerned about the acute financial situation of the Trust and the 
condition of the building and facilities at Heatherwood hospital. While the Panel is 
totally committed to the creation of a Healthspace at Bracknell with an urgent care 
facility, we want to encourage the Trust to find suitable partners to make a much 
needed investment to the Heatherwood site and commission service that are 
sustainable services that are cost effective and complementary to the Healthspace.  

2. We want to see the Trust reduce further the reliance on agency staff and build a more 
stable workforce that encourages leading clinicians in their particular field to join the 
team. 

3. The Panel also wants to see the Trust commission consultants to be available during 
the weekend. 

4. Perhaps it would also be helpful in the report if the Trust could distinguish the specific 
work carried out at individual sites to help us understand the whole picture. The 
breakdown of services at individual sites is listed on page 5. 

5. We are encouraged to see the Trust improving their IT systems in order to respond 
more quickly to demand and a fast changing picture of activity. We are also delighted 

60



Unrestricted 

that the priories include a better booking system and rates of cancelled hospital 
generated appointments have reduced. 

6. We are also delighted to see infection rates decline (page 27/28). 
7. Working with the Clinical Commissioning Groups is increasingly important, and we 

would welcome more information on how the Trust will embrace that change.   
 
We are pleased to see the improved communications with the Trust since you took up post 
and we look forward to continuing working with you to improve services. 
 
 
With best wishes, 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Tony Virgo 
Chairman, Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 
Copies to: Councillor Birch; Director of Adult Social Care, Health & Housing 
Email Copy to penny.coventry@hwph-tr.nhs.uk 
 

61



Unrestricted 

Appendix 4 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Edward Donald 
Chief Executive 
Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust 
London Road 
Reading 
RG1 5AN 
 
By email to: 
Edward.donald@royalberkshire.nhs.uk 
 
Date: 24/04/2012 
 
 
 
Dear Ed, 

 
TRUST’S QUALITY ACCOUNT 2011/12  
 
Thank you for inviting the views of Bracknell Forest Council’s Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel on the Trust’s Quality Account for 2011/12. 
 
The Panel has the following comments: 
 

1. We warmly welcome the opening of the Trust’s clinic at Brant’s Bridge, Bracknell, and 
we look forward to it being used more by Bracknell Forest residents. 

2. We are concerned that the turnaround time for ambulances attending the Royal 
Berkshire Hospital in Reading is sometimes slow, particularly when A&E is at capacity 
and we would like to see improvements made to reduce this delay. 

3. We would like to see as priority Clostridium Difficile infection rates reduced. On page 
6, it states that current rates are above target. 

4. Working with the Clinical Commissioning Groups is increasingly important, and we 
would welcome more information on how the Trust will embrace that change.   

 
 
With best wishes, 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Tony Virgo 
Chairman, Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 
Copies to: Councillor Birch; Director of Adult Social Care, Health & Housing 
Email Copy to Hester.Wain@royalberkshire.nhs.uk 

62



Unrestricted 

Appendix 5 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
William Hancock 
Chief Executive 
South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust, 
Unit 7 and 8, Talisman Business Centre 
Talisman Road 
Bicester 
Oxfordshire 
OX26 6HR 
 
By email to: Will.Hancock@scas.nhs.uk 
 
Date: 24/04/2012 
 
 
 
Dear Will, 

 
TRUST’S QUALITY ACCOUNT 2011/12  
 
Thank you for inviting the views of Bracknell Forest Council’s Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel on the Trust’s Quality Account for 2011/12. 
 
The Panel has the following comments: 
 

1. The Panel congratulates the Trust on achieving Foundation Trust status. This was a 
major achievement. 

2. We are pleased to see the continued improvements and areas of excellence from the 
Trust. 

3. The Panel was concerned that the Trust was still relying on the availability of 
freelance staff and vehicles for its operations including emergency call outs. We 
would like to see this figure reduced (paragraph 1.1 page 25). 

4. We are encouraged to see ambulance call out time continued to improve. 
5. We commend the drive to reduce hospital handover delays, led by SCAS. 
6. Working with the Clinical Commissioning Groups is increasingly important, and we 

would welcome more information on how the Trust will embrace that change.   
 
 
With best wishes, 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Tony Virgo 
Chairman, Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 
Copies to: Councillor Birch; Director of Adult Social Care, Health & Housing 
Email Copies to  duncan.burke@scas.nhs.net; fizz.thompson@scas.nhs.uk 

63



Unrestricted 

Appendix 6 
 
 

From: Wain Hester [mailto:Hester.Wain@royalberkshire.nhs.uk]  
Sent: 24 April 2012 12:22 
To: Richard Beaumont 
Subject: RE: Quality Accounts - Observations by Bracknell Forest Council 
 
Dear Richard, 
 
Thank you for your comments. I will add these verbatim to the Quality Accounts, where we will respond to the 
areas you have raised. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
Hester 
 
 
From: Mollett Amanda [mailto:Amanda.Mollett@berkshire.nhs.uk]  
Sent: 24 April 2012 15:24 
To: Richard Beaumont; Emms Julian 
Cc: Wilson Justin 
Subject: Quality Accounts - Observations by Bracknell Forest Council 
 
Dear Richard 
 
I would like to thank the panel and chair for reviewing the Draft Trust 
Quality Account.  
 
Following verbal feedback received last week, the draft Trust Quality 
Account has been updated to reflect the following two points which were 
raised (attached): 
 
1. Reference to the plans for Prospect Park Hospital in terms of a 
centre for excellence, this is now included within the statement section 
of the document. 
2. Concerns around the offer rate for physical health checks in 
2.1.3a for Bracknell being lower than other localities, the year end 
data for physical health checks has now been updated, the table 2.1.3a 
on page 14 now demonstrates that 99% of Bracknell clients were offered a 
physical health check exceeding the target of 80%. 
 
With regards to the other points included within the Chairs formal 
comments received today, we will review and consider them prior to the 
final Trust Quality Account being received and signed off by the Board 
on 8th May. 
 
Best Wishes 
 
Amanda 
 
 
Amanda Mollett 
Head of Clinical Effectiveness and Audit 
Berkshire Healthcare NHS 
Foundation Trust 
 

64



Unrestricted 

 

65



66

This page is intentionally left blank



Unrestricted 

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
14 JUNE 2012 

 
 

WORKING GROUPS UPDATE REPORT 
Assistant Chief Executive 

 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report provides an update on the Working Groups of the Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel.  
 
 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 That the Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel notes the progress achieved to 

date by the Panel’s Working Groups. 
 
 
3 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 

Health Reforms 
 
3.1 The Working Group comprises Councillors Finch (Lead Member), Mrs Angell, and 

Virgo. It has been formed to monitor the implementation of the major changes from 
the 2010 NHS White Paper and the Health and Social Care Bill, with a particular 
focus on the transfer of public health responsibilities to the Council. The Working 
Group has held two meetings to date, most recently on 17 November 2011. The 
Group decided to suspend further meetings of the Working Group until the legislative 
changes became known. Following enactment of the Health and Social Care Act, a 
further meeting of the Working Group has been arranged for 7 June. 

 
Health and Well Being Strategy 
 

3.2 The Working Group comprises Councillors Virgo (Lead Member), Baily, Finch, and 
Mrs Temperton; and Mr Pearce. It has been formed to make an input to the Council’s 
statutory ‘Health and Well Being’ strategy, and to monitor the creation of the Health 
and Well Being Board. The Working Group has held two meetings to date, most 
recently on 6 December 2011. The Group are due to meet next on 6 June, to further 
engage in the development of the new Health and Well Being Strategy. 

 
‘Shaping the Future’ of Health Services in East Berkshire  

 
3.3 The Chairman has decided to form a Working Group to consider the forthcoming 

major consultation by NHS Berkshire (Primary Care Trust) and Heatherwood & 
Wexham Park Hospitals Trust on ‘Shaping the Future’. This is aimed at reconfiguring 
healthcare services in response to the changing national and local clinical priorities. 
The planned timetable for the consultation has been deferred by the NHS, and the 
Working Group has not yet been formed. Meanwhile, the Chairman and Vice 
Chairman have continued informal discussions with the Chairmen of the Health 
Scrutiny Committees for Buckinghamshire County Council, Slough BC, and RB 
Windsor & Maidenhead, the PCT and Heatherwood and Wexham Park Hospitals 
Trust on developments.    

Agenda Item 11

67



Unrestricted 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND 
OTHER OFFICERS/ EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT/ STRATEGIC RISK 
MANAGEMENT ISSUES / OTHER OFFICERS/ CONSULTATION – Not applicable 

 
Background Papers 
 
None 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Richard Beaumont – 01344 352283 
e-mail: richard.beaumont@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
 

68


	Agenda
	4 Minutes and Matters Arising
	04 ACTIONS TAKEN (attach to minutes)

	8 Treatment for Strokes
	9 Dementia
	1.  Services and Support for People who have a Dementia
	2 commissioning-strategy-for-people-with-dementia-2009-to-2014
	4 dementia LIT COMPLETED actions April 2012
	5 Review of progress BFC template

	10 Quality Accounts
	11 Working Group Updates

